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INTRODUCTION

On November 25, 1996, Marilyn Churley, M.P.P., for Riverdale, requested an opinion whether
The Honourable Allan Leach, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing (“Leach”), violated the
Members’ Integrity Act, 1994, (“Act™), as the result of certain actions taken by his Executive
Assistant, John Matheson (“Matheson”). The letter is attached hereto as Exhibit “1”, and the
affidavit in support of the request, by J. Brian Donovan (“Donovan”), dated December 9th, 1996
is attached as Exhibit *“2”. ‘

The procedure in dealing with complaints under s.30 of the Act, as set out in my memorandum to
all members of the Legislative Assembly dated December 2, 1996, is as follows:

Upon receipt of the complaint and the supporting evidence, verified by affidavit,
with evidence of service upon the Speaker, the Commissioner will proceed as
follows:

(1) Serve the complaint and supporting material upon the member whose
conduct is in question with a request that a written reply to the allegation be filed
within ten days.

(2) Serve a copy of the reply provided upon the complainant with a request for
a written response within ten days.

3) Upon receipt of the response, based on the material provided, the
Commissioner determines either,

(a) that the complaint can be resolved without oral evidence and makes a report;
or

(b) that a hearing is required and notifies the parties of the hearing date with a
request that any additional material be filed five (5) days prior to the
hearing.



4) At the hearing, all witnesses shall give evidence on oath or affirmation.

(5) The parties are entitled to examine and cross-examine any witness, either
personally, or by an agent or counsel.

(6) If the circumstances warrant, the Commissioner may direct that the evidence
be recorded.

(7 The Commissioner may retain counsel to assist in the presentation of
evidence and argument.

Section 31(2)(a) of the Act provides that:

“the Commissioner may elect to exercise the powers of a commission under Parts I
and II of the Public Inquiries Act, in which case those Parts apply to the inquiry as
if it were an inquiry under that Act;”

Section 31(5) of the Act states:

“If the Commissioner is of the opinion that the referral of a matter to him or her is
frivolous, vexatious or not made in good faith, or that there are no grounds or
insufficient grounds for an inquiry, the Commissioner shall not conduct an inquiry
and shall state the reasons for not doing so in the report.” (emphasis added)

On the basis of the material filed, attached to my Report and marked as exhibits herein, I have
concluded that the information contained in the several affidavits is sufficient to provide the opinion

requested and that a more formal inquiry is not required.

BACKGROUND

On September 26, 1996, Donovan, a lawyer associated with the law firm of Cassels Brock &
Blackwell, wrote Steve Lowden, Chair of the Sub-Panel on Education Finance, known as the
“Who Does What Committee”, on behalf of the Parent/Staff Association of Franklin Community
School (“PSA™), requesting inter alia information “in respect of the appointment and activities of
your sub-panel on education finance”. The letter, delivered on September 27th, and attached hereto
as Exhibit “3”, further stated that previous requests of his client to obtain information having not
been answered and in view of the fact that the Sub-Panel’s findings and conclusions were to be
reported on October 5, 1996, he would seek instructions from his client to immediately commence
judicial proceedings by way of injunction, certiorari and prohibition if the information requested in

the letter was not forthcoming immediately. He also requested that the sub-committee cease its



deliberations pending resolution of the problem.

The affidavit of David Spring (“Spring”), attached hereto as Exhibit “4”, deposes that he is the
Senior Counsel in the Municipal and Planning Law section of the Legal Services Branch of the
Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing and states that,

“2.  The Province of Ontario, as represented by the Minister of Municipal Affairs
and Housing, required assistance from advisors and consultants in reviewing the
service delivery responsibilities of the municipal and provincial governments. This
advisory group became known as the “Who Does What Panel”. The participation of
the advisors was confirmed by letter and the consultants were retained by the
Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing in his capacity as a Minister of the
Crown.”

He states that he received a copy of the Donovan letter (Exhibit “3”") on September 27, 1996,
which he circulated to his supervisor and senior officials within the Ministry. Matheson was also
made aware of the letter. Spring’s preliminary opinion was that the action proposed in the letter
was without merit. He was instructed to prepare a reply. At the beginning of the following week,
he prepared his reply and on October 1st or 2nd, telephoned Donovan to advise that he would be
responding to his letter in writing. Donovan replied that he would await Spring’s reply. On
October 4th, prior to sending his reply, the Ministry officials provided him with a copy of
Donovan’s letter of withdrawal, attached hereto as Exhibit “5”. Accordingly, Spring took no

further action.

Matheson, in his affidavit attached hereto as Exhibit “6”, deposed that he is the Executive Assistant
to Leach and not a member of the legal staff of the Ministry and further,

“2.  Asexecutive assistant to the Minister, I am responsible for the planning and
operations of his office. In particular, I manage his strategic communications and
am responsible for the operation of his legislative agenda. Although I am a lawyer
by profession, I do not act as legal counsel to the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and
Housing.

2 On or about September 27th, 1996, I received a copy of a letter dated
September 26th, 1996, and written by J. Brian Donovan. A copy of this letter is
attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. In that letter, Mr. Donovan threatened to bring an
application for an injunction to “restrain further activity and deliberation” by the
sub-panel on education finance of the Who Does What commission. Given the tight
operational time frames under which the sub-panel was operating, I regarded the
threatened injunction as a potential communications and operational challenge.”
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Matheson decided to confirm the identity of Donovan and information as to his experience in
litigation in an attempt to evaluate the potential risk of a court action proceeding. He suspected that
“Donovan” had been a classmate at law school and that he was “a highly ideological individual”
who would proceed to litigation whether he received a fee or not. In fact, Donovan had been a

classmate and had received a retainer of $2,000 from the PSA.

In order to confirm the identity of Donovan, and ascertain whether the threat of litigation was
serious, Matheson, on Friday, the 27th of September, phoned Hugh Donald Guthrie (“Guthrie”), a
partner at Cassels Brock and Blackwell. Guthrie did not know Donovan personally, who in fact,
was a fairly recent addition to the 130 member firm and so advised Matheson. Guthrie inquired as
to the purpose of the inquiry and Matheson proceeded to read the Donovan letter to him. Guthrie
stated that he was completely unaware of the situation. Guthrie was called to the Bar in 1954 and

for some years has been the Chairman of the firm’s Ethics and Professional Standards Committee.

On Monday, September 30th, Guthrie reported the situation to other senior members of the firm,
none of whom were aware of the matter. The following morning, October 1st, Donovan was
interviewed by two unidentified senior members of the firm who advised him he had failed to
properly complete a “conflict search” which would have disclosed that the firm had a conflict. The
result of the discussion was that Donovan wrote the following letter (Exhibit “5”) on October 4,
1996 to Steve Lowden, Chair of the Sub-Panel, and attached to Donovan’s Affidavit dated January
10, 1997, which is attached hereto as Exhibit “7":

“My letter to you and other members of the Subpanel on Education Finance of
September 27, while sent on the firm letterhead of Cassels Brock & Blackwell, was
unauthorized by the firm. Further, I have been advised that had the firm been aware
of the letter, it would not have considered acting in this matter at all. Consequently,
I am writing formally to withdraw my September 27, 1996 letter.

In any case, I can advise you that I do not verily believe that the PSA intends to
proceed with an application for judicial review; however, if it does decide to
proceed, Cassels Brock & Blackwell will not consider acting in the matter on their
behalf.”

The Sub-Panel reported on October 5th, thereby foreclosing the efforts of the PSA to make their



representation to it.

The Guthrie affidavit, attached hereto as Exhibit “8”, sets out in some detail the procedure in place
at Cassels Brock & Blackwell to protect against conflict of interest situations. In brief, it required,
prior to the acceptance of a retainer from a new client, that an inquiry be circulated by written
memorandum or electronic mail to all other lawyers in the firm and to the central records
department to ascertain whether the proposed retainer might create a conflict. An adequate time for
response should be allowed. A partner may accept the retainer if no adverse reply is received. An
associate has a further restriction in that he should normally seek the approval or guidance of his
supervising partner. The lawyer then opens a file which involves detailed instructions to the central

records department, including name of client, and other relevant information.

Guthrie reviewed the records produced by the firm’s Chief Administrative Officer and the only
effort at compliance is the following transcript of an electronic message issued on September 27th
at 9:56 a.m., and attached hereto as Exhibit “9”:

“THIS MESSAGE IS BEING SENT TO SECRETARIES ONLY - PLEASE PASS
ON TO ALL LAWYERS

I have been asked to act for the Frankland Public School Parents/Staff Association
to seek an immediate interim injunction and other ancillary prerogative relief against
the Ontario Subpanel on Education Finance.

Please advise Brian Donovan if there is a conflict.”

The priority to be given to the message was “normal”. The only response recorded is that of John

W. R. Day stating “Not to my knowledge™.

Guthrie’s affidavit further states:

“10. Ttis further to be noted that the conflict inquiry was issued on “27/9/96” at
“0:56” a.m.” (i.e. on the day following the date of the Letter). Neither I nor the
“Senior Partners” of the firm referred to in paragraph 7 of Mr. Donovan’s affidavit,
(Exhibit “2”) nor many of the lawyers in the firm of whom I have made inquiries
ever saw the conflict message. There is no record of the inquiry having been sent to
the central records department of the firm. The firm was acting at the time and has
for many years acted for several Ministries of the Government of Ontario, including
the Ministry of Education & Training, and had the conflict inquiry been in proper
form and issued in time for appropriate response in advance of the issuance of the
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Letter, I have no doubt that I and several partners in the firm would have responded
adversely to the acceptance of the proposed retainer, or would at least have initiated
inquiries, because the firm had clearly, at the time, a true ethical conflict as well as a
business conflict in acting contrary to the interests of the Ministry of Education &
Training or any panel or sub-panel associated with that Ministry.”

Both Matheson and Guthrie have denied in their respective affidavits that Matheson in any manner
suggested to Cassels Brock & Blackwell that Donovan should discontinue his representation of the
PSA. Mr. Leach deposed that he had no contact with anyone at Cassels Brock & Blackwell, nor

did he authorize Matheson or any member of his staff to contact the law firm.

Donovan has an exceptional educational background, an outstanding scholastic record, and a
relatively brief legal career since his Call to the Bar in 1993. Prior to joining Cassel Brock &
Blackwell, he was associated with another large Toronto firm which no doubt had a detailed
procedure to guard against conflict of interest. At Cassels, Brock & Blackwell, he was aware that a
system was in place, yet his compliance efforts were minimal and ineffectual. As a parent member
of the PSA and solicitor for the PSA, should have been aware that the Sub-Panel was not
responding to the request from the Chair of the PSA. He knew that court proceedings most
probably would be necessary to prevent the Sub-Panel from reporting on October 5, 1996, and did
not take any adequate steps to comply with his firm’s conflict of interest procedures until Friday,
September 27th at 9:56 a.m.

When Matheson phoned Guthrie on the same date, he set in motion a chain of events that led to
Donovan sending the letter dated October 4th to the Chair of the Sub-Panel subsequent to his
meeting on October 1st, at which two senior partners advised him that the firm could not accept the

retainer from the PSA and would not proceed with the proposed Application for Prohibition.

The Guthrie affidavit (Exhibit “8”") and the Donovan affidavit (Exhibit “7"), purport to reflect what
transpired when Donovan met with the two unidentified senior partners. Guthrie was not at the
meeting and a considerable portion of the proposed evidence as to what transpired offends the
“hearsay rule” and is not admissible. The Donovan affidavit suffers, in part, from the same

prohibition and in addition, many of the statements are not relevant to the issue with which I am
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concerned.

It is a reasonable presumption that the meeting was not a cordial one. There was a difference of

opinion on a serious matter which affected the law firm and Donovan.

In view of the conclusion at which I have arrived, it is neither necessary nor proper that I comment
further on a matter which has been referred to the Law Society of Upper Canada for investigation,

at which time all material witnesses may be called to testify. Suffice it to say that whether the letter

of withdrawal was voluntary or written under pressure, the members of the PSA were deprived of
their right to proceed with injunctive proceedings, whether meritorious or not, without their

consent.

The Preamble to the Act sets out certain principles defining in a general way the purposes and
objectives of the legislation. It is the background or the context in which the public will judge the

manner in which members discharge their official duties.

The 4th principle in the Preamble to the Act states,

“Members are expected to act with integrity and impartiality that will bear the
closest public scrutiny.”

In reviewing the evidence, I considered the 4th principle to determine whether the comments of
Leach recorded in the transcript of Hansard of November 7th, 1996, attached hereto as Exhibit
“10”, in response to a question by Mrs. Lyn McLeod, Leader of the Official Opposition, with
respect to the matter in issue, reflected a proper appreciation of the principle. Leach replied, in part,

“The application seemed so frivolous that my executive assistant called Cassels
Brock and said, “Are you serious?” They said: “We’re not aware of this at all. We’ll
get back to you.” We never heard any more about it until such time as we got a letter
from the lawyer in question withdrawing the application. That’s all we know.

By the way, so everybody’s aware, this is the law firm of the former leader of the
Liberal Party, David Peterson. If anybody thinks we’re going to call and try to
intimidate a law firm like that, it is rather silly. There was absolutely no attempt to
intimidate anybody. We made an inquiry whether this was serious. We didn’t hear
any more after that. What the law firm does is their business. If they’re that easily
intimidated, they’re not very good lawyers.”

-



Later on November 25th, in response to a question by Ms. Marilyn Churley, M.P.P. for
Riverdale, on the same matter, and attached hereto as Exhibit “11”, he replied,

« T also think it’s very appropriate that when you get a letter from a law firm
that’s threatening to take legal action on a process that’s under way, it’s an
appropriate thing to do to call that law firm and inquire what this is all about. And
that’s what I said before. We called the law firm and said, “Are you serious?” The
law firm -- The principals of the law firm said they didn’t know anything about the
matter and that’s the last we heard of it.”

The reasonable inference to be drawn from the above comments is that is not inappropriate fora
Minister of the Crown, or his political staff, to communicate with the law firm which is in the
process of litigating with his Ministry, to ascertain whether that law firm is “serious” about
proceeding with the litigation. Any such communication, while it may seem innocuous to the

Minister, may be viewed otherwise by the recipient of the inquiry.

In my opinion, such comments were inappropriate, and do not reflect a proper appreciation of the

Preamble.

ISSUE

Did Leach use his office to influence a decision made or to be made by Donovan on behalf of his
client, the PSA, as the result of certain actions taken by Matheson for which Leach has
acknowledged responsibility, to further the Minister’s private interest, i.e. the prompt report of the
Sub-Panel chaired by Steve Lowden to the “Who Does What Panel” retained by Leach in his
capacity as a Minister of the Crown, contrary to s. 4 of the Members’ Integrity Act, 19947 Section
4 states:

“A member of the Assembly shall not use his or her office to seek to influence a decision
made or to be made by another person so as to further the member’s private interest or
improperly to further another person’s private interest.”

The determination of that issue requires a consideration of the facts giving rise to the reason for the
change of decision by Donovan not to proceed with court action. It is a reasonable inference that
Matheson’s inquiry created a situation without which the result in issue would probably not have
occurred. It was a causa sine qua non. The immediate and direct cause (the causa causans) for the

change of decision resulted from the meeting between Donovan and the two anonymous senior
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partners at which the issue of non-compliance with the firm’s conflict procedure was discussed.
That confrontation resulted in the letter of withdrawal which Donovan sent to his client. Whether
the decision to withdraw was consensual or otherwise, it cannot be attributed to Matheson nor a

fortiori to Leach.

FINDING
On the evidence before me, I am satisfied that The Honourable Allan Leach, Minister of Municipal

Affairs and Housing did not violate s.4 of the Members’ Integrity Act, 1994, either personally or
as a result of the activities of his Executive Assistant, John Matheson, for which he accepted

responsibility.

DATED at the City of Toronto in the Province of Ontario, this 3rd day of February, 1997.

L s

The Honourable Gregory T. Evans




EXHIBIT " 1 "

Ontario .

LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY

MARILYN CHURLEY
-MPP/DerPuTEE PROVINCIALE

November 25, 1996 Riverdale_ ;

Hon. G.T. Evans, Q.C.

Office of the Integrity Commissioner
4th Floor, 101 Bloor St. W. '
Toronto, Ontario '

‘OPEN LETTER
Dear Mr. Evans: |

I write to ask you to investigate whether the Minister of Municipal Affairs and
Housing, the Hon. Al Leach, has breached the Members’ Integrity Act. While the
Act speaks to the conduct of Members, we must also be aware of the public’s - -
- perception of senior political staff. A Minister’s executive assistant is regularly - -
assumed to be speaking with the voice of his or her Minister. Indeed, staff are
normally instructed to comport themselves as if this were the case. N

In the case in question, the Minister has clearly stated that his executive assistant —
the senior member of the Minister’s political staff — telephoned a law firm that
represented a group of parents who wished to protest the work of a subpanel
operating under the Minister’s mandate. The parents had written a letter stating
they were considering launching legal proceedings against the government.

The Minister is on the record as saying: “The application seemed so frivolous that
my executive assistant called Cassels Brock and said, “Are you serious?”” The
Minister went further, implicating himself in this intimidating action, when he
'said: “We made an inquiry as to whether this was a serious allegation.” [Hansard,
November 7, 1996] I S e '

- Today in the Legislature I raised the matter again during Question Period and the

Minister responded in a similar vein, deeming it appropriate for his staff to have
telephoned and questioned the intent of the lawyer’s clients. '

2
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While the Minister seems to wholeheartedly approve of his executive assistant’s -
action, it is still unclear whether or not he directed that this action be taken, if others.
gave that direction or if the staff member acted on his own. Either way, as I

indicated previously, senior staff are perceived to be acting on behalf of the Minister.

The result for the parents at Frankland Community School, located in my riding of
Riverdale, was devastating. Their lawyer has indicated he was instructed by his.
superiors to drop their case, and he subsequently resigned from the firm. The
parents’ questions remain unanswered. The subpanel which they questioned has ,
made its report to the Minister so that the opportunity to have questions answered

or to apply for an injunction has passed. ' | | i o

This appears to be an abrogation of the rights of citizens, who should expect to be
able to ask questions of their government and consider legal recourse without -
intimidation by political staff. I ask you to undertake an investigation of this event
and determine whether the spirit or intent of the Members’ Integrity act has been
broken. g w e Te s S

" Yours sincerely,

j Mazyh Churley, MPP o

~ - Riverdale

cc. - The Honourable Chris Stockwell, Speaker

- abm/opseu:593
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IN THE MATTER OF a Request for an
Investigation made to the Office of the Integrity
Commissioner in respect of certain conduct of the
Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing and a
Member of his Political Staff '

AFFIDAVIT OF BRIAN DONOVAN
I, BRIAN DONOVAN, of the City of Toronto, in the Municipality of Metropolitan

Toronto, MAKE OATH AND SAY AS FOLLOWS:

1. I am a Barrister and Solicitor of the Bar of Ontario, called to the Bar in February of
1993. I tendered my resignation from the law firm of Cassels, Brock & Blackwell on October
28, 1996, and with effect from November 20, 1996, I ceased to be employed as an associate

lawyer with that firm.

2, I have received from the Honourable Marilyn Churley, M.P.P. for Riverdale, a copy of
her letter of November 25, 1996 addressed to the Honourable G.T. Evans, Q.C., Integrity
Commissioner for the Ontario Provincial Parliament. A copy of Ms. Churley’s letter is annexed
to this my Affidavit as Exhibit "A". Ms. Churley has asked me to swear this Affidavit in order
to record my knowledge of the subject matter in respect of which she has requested an

investigation, for the assistance of the Integrity Commissioner in his inquiries.

3. In September, 1996, I was retained by the Parent Staff Association of Frankland
Community School (the "PSA") to make formal inquiries of the Subpanel on Education Finance

of the Ontario Who Does What Panel, a body chaired by Mr. David Crombie. The PSA was,
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at that time, seriously concerned that a letter by Ms. Colleen D. Morris, one of its members,
addressed to Mr. Steve Lowden, Chair of the Subpanel on Education Finance, had gone

unanswered. A copy of Ms. Morris’ letter, dated September 20, 1996, is attached to this my

Affidavit as Exhibit "B".

4. Acting on my clients’ instructions, I wrote a letter to Mr. Lowden, dated September 26,
1996, but delivered on September 27, 1996. The purpose of this letter was two-fold. First, I
made certain specific requests for certain specific information about the Subpanel and its

activities, including, but not limited to the following:

(@) Whether the Subpanel had any formal terms of reference, and, if
so, if it proposed to produce these to the public;

(b)  Whether the Subpanel proposed to receive oral deputations from
any of the interests which would potentially be affected by its

recommendations; and
(c) How members of the Subpanel were chosen, whether they were
paid, and what selection process was used to ensure a fair

representation of interested parties in the course of the Subpanel’s
selection.

5. Secondly, I inquired by what legal instrument, if any, the Subpanel had been constituted,
and suggested that my clients were considering an Application for Judicial Review of the
Subpanel’s activities, seeking orders in the nature of certiorari and prohibition, to quash the
Subpanel’s constitution and restrain if from reporting if it was improperly legally constituted,

or if it was found to have failed to comply with any standards of procedural fairness which it
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was legally bound to observe. A copy of my letter dated September 26, 1996, addressed to Mr.

Lowden, is annexed to this my Affidavit as Exhibit "C".

6. By September 30, 1996, I had received no response to my letter to Mr. Lowden dated
September 26, 1996. At that time, the PSA had been given to understand that the Subpanel
would report its recommendations by October 3, 1996. Given the very tight time frame
apparently involved, I wrote again to Mr. Lowden on September 30, 1996 again requesting a

response. A copy of my second letter to Mr. Lowden is attached to this my Affidavit as Exhibit

llDll.

T On October 1, 1996, I was summoned to a meeting with two Senior Partners of Cassels,
Brock & Blackwell. In the course of this meeting, I was told that the firm had "received a call
from the Province" in respect of my letter to Mr. Lowden dated September 26, 1996. I was also
told that my letter had been very widely circulated, and that many people were very upset about
it. I was told, further, that the Cassels, Brock & Blackwell law firm had bee_n retained on
various occasions by the Ontario Ministry of Education and Training. I was then instructed to
write a further letter to Mr. Lowden, without the consent of my clients, withdrawing my letter
to Mr. Lowden of September 26, 1996 and stating that Cassels, Brock & Blackwell would not

consider representing the PSA in the matter.

8. In response, [ pointed out that I had performed a conflict search within the firm, and that,

in any case, my clients did not intend to seek any legal remedy against the Ministry of Education
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‘and Training. In contrast, any Application for Judicial Review would have named as

Respondent the Subpanel on Education Finance, which is not an emanation of the Ontario
Ministry of Education and Training, nor, indeed, of any other Ministry of the Ontario
Government. 1 also pointed out that I had been given a retainer in excess of $2,000.00 in

respect of the matter.

9. The Senior Partners of Cassels Brock & Blackwell with whom I was summoned to meet
did, nevertheless, insist that I cease my representation of the PSA, and instructed me to write
a further letter to Mr. Lowden formally withdrawing my letter of September 26, 1996, and
stating that Cassels Brock & Blackwell would not consider acting for the PSA in the matter.
On the instructions of these Senior Partners of Cassels Brock & Blackwell, I sent this final letter
to Mr. Lowden, a copy of which is attached to this my Affidavit as Exhibit "E". On October
28, 1996, I tendered my resignation from Cassels Brock & Blackwell, in consequence of the

action which I had been instructed to take.

10.  While I did not know this at the relevant time, I now believe that the vcall from the
Province" referred to by the Senior Partners of Cassels Brock & Blackwell with whom [ met on
October 1, 1996 was made by John Matheson, Executive Assistant to Al Leach, Ontario’s
current Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing. Attached to this my Affidavit as Exhibit
"E" is a copy of an excerpt from Ontario Hansard of November 7, 1996, wherein Mr. Leach
admitted in the House that his Executive Assistant had called Cassels Brock & Blackwell in

respect of my letter dated September 26, 19796 to Mr. Lowden. Mr. Leach characterized the
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matter as "frivolous” and stated that his Executive Assistant had asked Cassels, Brock &

Blackwell "Are You Serious?"

11.  Attached to this my Affidavit and marked collectively as Exhibit "G" are copies of
articles in respect of this matter printed in the Globe & Mail (John Barber - November 8, 1996),
and in the Toronto Star (Peter Small - November 12, 1996), which identify John Matheson as
the Executive Assistant who made the telephone call to Cassels Brock & Blackwell. Ihave no
knowledge as to whether Mr. Matheson made the telephone call of his own initiative or at the

instigation of Mr. Leach.

12. I do not believe that Mr. Matheson telephoned Cassels Brock & Blackwell in order to
determine whether Cassels Brock & Blackwell were "serious” about the letter, or because the
letter seemed "frivolous”, in that:
(@ At no point did Mr. Matheson ever attempt to make contact with me, the author
of the letter; in contrast, he apparently contacted a senior partner of Cassels
Brock & Blackwell who had no knowledge of the matter; and
(b)  The letter itself consisted principally of formal requests for information about the
constitution and operations of a public body, the Subpanel on Education Finance,

and it is not clear how requests made by citizens through a lawyer for information
about a public body can be frivolous.

13. My honest opinion is that the true purpose of Mr. Matheson’s telephone call to Cassels
Brock & Blackwell was to cause Cassels Brock & Blackwell to instruct me to withdraw my legal

representation from the PSA (as it did) in order that the questions posed in my letter dated



-

SO R

\
- )

6

September 26, 1996 would not have to be answered, and the Subpanel on Education Finance
would not be subject to an Application for Judicial Review on any of the proposed grounds set
out in that letter. I believe that if Mr. Matheson’s true purpose in telephoning Cassels Brock

& Blackwell had been as stated by Mr. Leach in the House, then Mr. Matheson would have

contacted me, the author of the letter, and not my employers.

14.  Itis my honest opinion that Mr. Matheson’s telephone call to Cassels Brock & Blackwell,
whether instigated by Mr. Leach or made of his own volition, constituted a discreditable

interference in the relationship between me and my clients,- made for political purposes.

15. As a result of Mr. Matheson’s actions, my clients have been permanently and
irremediably prejudiced in whatever cause of action they may have had in the nature of
injunction or prohibition against the Subpanel on Education Finance, in that the Subpanel has
already reported its findings and recommendations. Moreover, I am advised by the PSA, and
I do verily believe, that none of the questions posed in my letter dated September 26, 1996, has

been answered.

16. 1 swear this Affidavit at the request of the Honourable Marilyn Churley, M.P.P. for

Riverdale, for the assistance of the Integrity Commissioner in his inquiries into this matter, and



for no other or improper purpose. I am, further, prepared to cooperate with the Integrity

Commiésioner in his inquiries in any way in which I may properly do so.

SWORN before me at the City of Toronto,

in the Municipality of Metropolitan Toronto

17 a

this'-*{iay of December, 1996 \\ VA s
J  Brian Donovan

‘2? / (/j(,rt,fb(/d‘?\_.

Commissioner for Taking Affidavits

MARGARET VENTURA, & Commissioner, ef,,
Municipality of Metropolitan Toronto, for

o Goodman and Carr, Barristers and Solicltorg,
Expires January 19, 1993,
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This is Exhibit "A" referred to in the Affidavit

of Brian Donovan sworn before me on this 9th day

of December, 1996.

-----------------------------------------------------------------------

MARGARET VENTURA, 2 Commiscioner, eit.,
Municipality of Metropolitan Toronto, for
Goodman and Carr, Barristers and Solicitarse

Expires January 19, 1999.
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WRITER'S DIRECT LINE: (4186) 869-5452
OUR FILE NO:

VIA DELIVERY AND FAX
September 26, 1996

Mr. Steve Lowden

Chair
Sub-Panel on Education Finance

Ministry of Education & Training
Mowat Block

24th Floor

900 Bay Street

Toronto, ON M7A 1L2

Dear Mr. Lowden:
Re: Sub-panel on Education Finance

We have been consulted by the Parent/Staff Association of Frankland Community
School (the "PSA") in respect of the appointment and activities of your sub-panel on
education finance. Our client, the PSA, has repeatedly attempted to obtain pertinent
information from your sub-panel which ought reasonably to be accessible to such 2
concerned organization under the circumstances. Indeed, the terms of reference of
your sub-panel have been requested, which request has been refused.

Accordingly, we have advised our client that the activities and deliberations of your
sub-panel are subject to judicial challenge on the basis of basic administrative law
principles of administrative reasonableness and procedural fairness.

We understand that your sub-panel proposes to report its findings and conclusions
on or about October 5, 1996, and that such report will have an impact upon the
interests of many parties, including our client. Consequently, unless your sub-panel
becomes immediately more forthcoming, we shall be seeking instructions to
commence immediate judicial proceedings to restrain further activity and
deliberation by your sub-panel by way of injunction, and certiorari to quash the sub-
panel's constitution, with prohibition in aid to preclude the delivery of your report

by the proposed October 5, 1996 deadline.

Without purporting to be exhaustive, our client's legitimate concerns include the
following:

Chasarly Potiio Dot Glas NeRIEGA . M
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As indicated above, the terms of reference for your sub-panel have been
requested, and this request has been refused. In contrast, we have most
recently been provided (as of September 25, 1996) with a set of draft terms of
reference. Are we to understand that the sub-panel on education finance has
been proceeding with its investigations and deliberations to date in the
absence of final terms of reference? If so, the sub-panel's activities have

clearly been carried on without proper authority.
In this connection, we require immediate answers to the following questions:

(@) Do final terms of reference for the sub-panel on education finance
exist?

(b)  If such terms of reference do exist, when were they adopted?

(c) If such terms of reference do exist, kindly produce a copy of same

immediately.

By letter dated September 20, 1996, Ms. Colleen D. Morris on behalf of the
PSA, requested that you notify the PSA as to the dates on which the sub-panel
will be receiving deputations. Ms. Morris has received no reply. Please
indicate at once when you will be receiving oral deputations from parties
whose interests will obviously be affected by any recommendations which

your sub-panel may make, including our client.

We are distressed to have been informed that the activities of the sub-panel
have been conducted under what can only be described as an aura of secrecy.
Our understanding is that information in respect of the location of the sub-
panel's proceedings has been denied when requested, even when such
requests have been for the purpose of delivering relevant materials to the
sub-panel. Such a practice is clearly unacceptable, and gives rise to an

inference of bad faith.

The legal authority for the appointment of the sub-panel (if any) appears to

have been kept mysterious. In this connection, we require immediate
answers to the following questions:

(a) How were the members of the sub-panel appointed?

(b) Are the sub-panel members paid for their work, and, if so, on what
basis?

(c)  What was the selection process utilized to ensure a fair representation
of interested parties in the course of the selection of the sub-panel;
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J (d) From what pool were the members of the sub-panel selected, and was

the process of selection made public?

(e) By means of what legal instrument (if any) were the members of the

sub-panel appointed?

n of the sub-panel on education finance is seriously defective,

hose interests will clearly be affected by
any report or recommendations made by the sub-panel. Most blatantly, the
Metropolitan Toronto School Board is not represented. Equally, the Ontario
Secondary School Teachers Federation is unrepresented. We aré advised that

knowledgeab
willing and prepared to serve on

selected. Why not?

5. The compositio
in that it fails to represent parties w

le members of these and other educational organizations are

the sub-panel. None of them have been

advised our client that any report oI

Under the circumstances, W€ have
as presently constituted will be

recommendations made by your sub-panel
fundamentally defective, in that it is not clear that the sub-panel was ever properly

|
)
i
Ii
F constituted, and legitimate apprehensions of bias, and procedural and
administrative unfairness, arise. I now write, further to Ms. Morris' letter of
September 20, 1996 to request that your sub-panel ;mmediately cease its activities
| B and deliberations, pending resolution of the very serious concerns outlined above. I

trust we shall receive your early and co-operative response, and that it will not be
in the assistance of the courts to restrain the sub-panel's current

necessary to obta
air and equitable result.

activities in order to ensure a f

Please govern yourself accordingly.

Yours very truly,
CASSELS BROCK & BLACKWEL

g%%/”"‘"

Per: J. Brian Donovan

JBD/tz
cc Ms. Gisele Lalonde
Ms. Enid Slack
Mr. James Downey
Ms. Linda Rydholm
Mr. John Snobelen (Delivered)
Ms. Gay Young
Ms. Colleen Morris
Ms. Maria Bahadur
Ms. Jane Archibald
Mr. Chris Malkiewich (fax: 751-7079) OF/039/z
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MARGARET VENTURA, 2 Commissloner, ett-
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Goodman and Carm Barristers
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zxiernal Liaison, Parent Staff Acsociation
Frankland Community School
815 Logan Ave.
Teronto, Ont. M4K ZEL
Zepl. 20, 1996.
Mp. Stayve Lowden, Chair, and rellow members: :
Mg Gicele Lalonge, Ms Enid Sleck, Dr. James Downey and Ms Linda Rydholm,
Subpanel on Education Finence, T ‘
Ministry of Education Fax ¢/0 Mancy Nanier: 325-537C.

Dear Mr. Lowden and fellow panel members,
Re: Request the Subpanel on Education Finance:
- stop discussion immediately;
- appoint Ann Yanstone to represent Metro Toronto education finance;
- increase the time needed to thoroughly debate the issue of education finance

We ara writing o sxpress our concern that the vitally impartant issue of {inancing our children’s
aducation is not eing properly rietated We have been following the issue af nublic education
finance closely and were dismayed to ruad e Sun., Sepl. 15/96 7oronto Stareditorial which is
attached for vour information. ;

e editors of 7/ Taraads Starsnare our conceras and concur: Metro Taronto ecucation iinance
must be represented on the Subpanel an rducation Financa by Ann Vanstane, Chair of the Metro
Toronto Board of Zducation. Demographics and cemocracy both demand nothing less.

Thus, we ask that all discussion and meetings of the Subpanel on Education Finance
stop immediately until Ann vanstone be appointed to this Subpanel.

Ms “/ansione is needed on the Subpanel on zducation Finance lo explain the complexities of
educating Metro Toranto school children. We agree with Jonn Barber af 7he Olade end farwnen
he writes 1hat to enforce a “ona-size-fits- all” fermula for education finance will be adisasier for
all children of Metra Toronto. With the present financing of Metra Toronto schools, Metra Toronto
taxpayers accepl responsibility to help ¢:hiidran who zuffer from the raveges of unemploymant,
hunger and a hoss. of ather sgeig-=connmic problems. Metro Toronlo taxpayers accept
responsibilily ic neip cnildren whose first language is not £nglish. Metro Toronto taxpayers
accent responsibility ‘o help children with special neecs. ‘We ynderstand that by helping to meet
these challenges unique in all of Canada, aducation for all Metrc Toronto's children can flourish.

Finally, more than ihree weaks is needed for the Subpanel cn Education inancs 1o thorcughly
uncerstand the unigue stresses placed on educating Ontaria's children.

We look forwarg 10 vour respense 0 ur grave concerns and we will be cantacting you shor-ly.
Please notifv us a5 to the daies thal you will be receiving deputations.

Yours tr_u\y.
/(01[204 75 /tACQ/‘hS
attechment Collesn D. Morris
c.c.: Premier Michaei Harris 416 465-7815 (fax 416 361 -0510)

M.2.P. . ohn Snobelen, Minister of Education - il
Ann _Vanstone, Chair, Metro Toronto Board of fducation 3¢7- ¢ (6 3 f’l ot =
Da\nq_ Mol Chair, foronto Beard of Education

Marilvn Caurley, M.P.P. ; Liberal Education Critic ; M.D.P. Educaticn Critic
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MARGARET VENTURA, a Commissioner, e,
Municipality of Metropolitan Taronto, for
Goodman and Carr, Barristers and Salicitorse
Exprres January 19, 1999,
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Ontaric New Democrats » Néo-Démocrates de ’Ontario

Information

. November 25, 1996

Hon. G.T. Evans, Q.C.
Office of the Integrity Commissioner
4th Floor, 101 Bloor St. W.
Toronto, Ontario
OPEN LETTER

Dear Mr. Evans:

I write to ask you to investigate whether the Minister of Municipal Affairs and
Housing, the Hon. Al Leach, has breached the Members' Integrity Act. While the
Act speaks to the conduct of Members, we must also be aware of the public’s
perception of senior political staff. A Minister’s executive assistant is regularly
assumed to be speaking with the voice of his or her Minister. Indeed, staff are
normally instructed to comport themselves as if this were the case.

In the case in question, the Minister has clearly stated that his executive assistant —
the senior member of the Minister’s political staff — telephoned a law firm that
represented a group of parents who wished to protest the work of a subpanel
operating under the Minister’s mandate. The parents had written a letter stating
they were considering launching legal proceedings against the government.

The Minister is on the record as saying: “The application seemed so frivolous that
my executive assistant called Cassels Brock and said, ‘Are you serious?” The
Minister went further, implicating himself in this intimidating action, when he
said: “We made an inquiry as to whether this was a serious allegation.” [Hansard,
November 7, 1996]

Today in the Legislature I raised the matter again during Question Period and the
Minister responded in a similar vein, deeming it appropriate for his staff to have
telephoned and questioned the intent of the lawyer’s clients.

While the Minister seems to wholeheartedly approve of his executive assistant’s
action, it is still unclear whether or not he directed that this action be taken, if others
gave that direction or if the staff member acted on his own. Either way, as I
indicated previously, senior staff are perceived to-be acting on behalf of the Minister.
w2
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The result for the parents at Frankland Community School, located in my riding of
Riverdale, was devastating. Their lawyer has indicated he was instructed by his
superiors to drop their case, and he subsequently resigned from the firm. The
parents’ questions remain unanswered. The subpanel which they questioned has

made its report to the Minister so that the opportunity to have questions answered
or to apply for an injunction has passed.

This appears to be an abrogation of the rights of citizens, who should expect to be
able to ask questions of their government and consider legal recourse without
intimidation by political staff. I ask you to undertake an investigation of this event

and determine whether the spirit or intent of the Members’ Integrity act has been
broken.

Sincerely,

Marilyn Churley
MPP -- Riverdale

E Mail to <ndpmail@ndp.on.ca>
-opseu 593
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of Brian Donovan sworn before me on this 9th day

of December, 1996.
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Cassels Brock & Blackwell

BARRISTERS & SOLICITORS « TRADE MARK AGENTS

SCOTIA PLAZA, SUITE 2100, 40 KING STREETWEST, TORONTO, CANADA M5H3C2
TELEPHONE (416) 869-5300 FAX (416) 360-8877

OUR FILE NO: 73402-1

LAWYER NO:
DATE: Monday, September 30, 1996
PLEASE SEND THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS TO:
FAX NO: 325-6370
NAME: Mr. Steve Lowden
COMPANY: c/o Ministry of Education and Training

275

CITY: Toronto

TELEPHONE.:

ORIGINALS SENT BY: Mail TDX Courler Not Sent|X
FROM: Brian Donovan TELEPHONE: 869-5452

NUMBER OF PAGES INC].UDING COVER PAGE: | 2

IF YOU EXPERIENCE PROBLEMS IN RECEIVING, PLEASE CALL:

fax operator AT - 869-5447
START SENDING AT: FINISH SENDING AT:
COMMENTS:

This ‘G‘GCODY Is privilaged and may contain confidential
sclosure |Is stricy prohibited. If you have recelved this telecopy In ermof, please notity us

copvlru]; or d
original transmission to us by mall without making a copy.

Information Intended only for the pamn(s? na;ndad above. Annuomer distribution,
mmediately by telep

ne and retumn the

International Affiliation CASSELS « POULIOT ¢ DOUGLAS « NORIEGA Toronto * Montréal « Vancouver ® Mexico City
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D) .
f TIME . SEP 30 '96 10:50
' TEL NUMBER : +416-360-8877
NAME : CASSELS BROCK 20TH
ggg_ DATE TIME DURATION pes 1O MODE STATUS
SEP. 27 12:11 P1/14 4 416 487 6524 EC oK
ceEp. 27 12:13 28/45 2 416 480 3570 EC NG 12
GEP. 27 12:16 00-44 2 416 480 3970 EC NG 12
SgpP.27 12:17 20,00 (%] 9pS56E602058 oK 30
cep. 27 12:21 @245 8 9956602058 EC oK
sep.27 13:11 20/00 % 4982629 oK 30
cep.27 13:11 22/55 2 416 923 1064 EC oK
gep. 27 13:14 22,008 (%] 4982629 oK 39
cep. 27 13:16 @3/82 e 416 978 3887 EC oK
cgP. 27 13:27 @110 3 4960020 EC oK
gEpP.27 13:33 p1/43 3 5048032 G3 oK
SEP.27 13:48 @2/25 =) 416 327 8685 EC oK
gEP.27 13:54 20-/00 %] 9673951 oK 39
SEP. 27 13:54 20/08 a2 9673951 oK 30
SEP. 27 14:43 @149 3 416 498 2629 G3 oK
GEP.27 14:45 @1/28 2 416 967 3951 G3 oK
SEP. 27 15:18 p2/31 4 opS8981978 G3 oK
gEP. 27 15:22 20-008 2 8639500 oK 38
gep.27 15:23 @200 % 8639500 : oK 30
cgP. 27 15:23 @060 %] 8639508 OK 30
gEp.27 15:23 00/00 8 86395008 oK 38
GEP. 27 15:44 @3/54 7 4162145438 G3 oK
SEP. 27 15:49 20./88 (5] 17054764495 : oK 3@
@62 SEP.27 15:58 ©@3/56 7 17054764495 . G3 oK
@63 SEP.27 15:55 . 08,00 %] 4839839 oK 3@
@e4 SEP.27 15:55 ©8/08 @ 4839839 ' oK 38
@es GSEP.27 15:56 ©0/00 1%} 4832839 : oK 38
@e6 SEP.27 15:57 @a/38 2 4939239 EC oK
@c7? GSEP.27 16:38 P0-/08 (%] 15148754388 oK 30
@68 SEP.27 17:51 7 P 515 2 7786640 ' oK 30
@e9 SEP.27 17:52 ©8/08 %] 7786640 0K 38
@78 GSEP.27 17:53 21736 1 1 416 778 6640 G3 oK 31
@71 SEP.27 18:17 ©@/2° 1 6876314 EC NG 12
@72 SEP.27 18:21 28,53 2 604 687 6314 EC oK
@73 SEP.30 @8:35 @a-,32 1 7365597&2793734@2n1n EC oK
@74 SEP.30 @9:43 @0/45 2 1 416 862 7661 EC oK
@75 SEP.30 10:17 ga/46 2 416 214 7275 EC NG 12
@76 SEP.38 1@:19 P1/04 3 416 214 7275 EC NG 12
@77 SEP.3@ 1@:22 93710 9 416 214 7275 EC oK
@78 GSEP.3@ 10@:49 @8/54 2 325 6370 EC oK
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TRADE MARK AGENTS

SCOTIA PLAZA, SUITE 2100, 40 KING STREET WEST, TORONTO, CANADA M5H3C2
TELEPHONE (416) 869-5300 FAX (41 6) 360-8877

l BARRISTERS & SOLICITORS *

WRITER'S DIRECT LINE: (416) 869-5452
OUR FILE NO:

September 30, 1996

Mr. Steve Lowden

Chair
Sub-Panel on Education Finance

Ministry of Education & Training
Mowat Block

24th Floor

900 Bay Street
Toronto, ON M7A 12

| f; ,- 4
Tl Dear Mr. Lowden:
" ."! letter to you and other members

May we kindly have the courtesy of a response to my
of the subpanel of September 27, 1996.
tain a satisfactory response to its very

our client is determined to ob
d the subpanel on notice that you must

legitimate concerns. This letter is to put you an
ndations by the October 5, 1996 deadline, or otherwise, until

; not report your recomme
h such concerns have adequately been addressed.

| emphasize that

1 -
I_L Yours very truly,
‘] CASSELS BROCK & BLACKWELL

Y= (
F“i B

rian Donovan
BD/jvms

UGLAS * NORIEGA Toronto * Montréal « Vancouver® Mexico City

International Affiliation CASSELS * pPOULIOT » DO




This is Exhibit "E" referred to in the Affidavit

of Brian Donovan sworn before me on this 9th day

of December, 1996.

----------------
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A COMMISSIONER  EQR, TAKING AFEIRAYITS, ETC.

Municipality of Metropolitan Toronto, Ipt:
Goodman and Gar, Barristers and Solicitor3e

Expires January 19% 1993,
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TIME

. OCT @4 '96 11:28

TEL NUMBER @ +416-360-8877
NAME CASSELS BROCK 2@TH
M T MODE STATUS
10:09 0119 2 416 944 6572 EC oK
19:34 01/10 3 4448896 EC oK
12:08 00/688 %) 2856499 oK 390
12:99 ©08-/09 @ 2856499 oK 38
12:@9 /00 %) 2856499 oK 38
12:11 29739 46 14162856499 EC oK
13:08 ©@2718 S 9pS-877-4029 G3 oK
13:22 0126 3 493 231 0144 EC oK
14:13 ©02/06 4 ops5-877-4020 G3 oK
14:33 @3/53 8 416 480 2612 EC oK
14:38 0800 (5] 4876524 oK 30
14:39 ©0/08 5} 4876524 oK 38
14:42 ©0/00 %) 4876524 oK 38
15:10 @2/39 B 9611@96 EC oK
16:08 @214 4 416 480 8147 EC oK
16:14 0130 3 18107568432 EC oK
16:35 ©@8/52 2 416 593 7768 EC oK
16:36 ©@9/51 2 416 861 8554 EC oK
16:45 20/00 a 3633356 oK 30
16:46 ©0/08 %] 3633356 oK 38
16:47 ©4/35 12 416 363 3356 EC oK
16:54 0108 3 416 487 6524 EC oK
17:86 08745 2 416 408 4563 EC oK
17:09 ©0/51 2 416 480 3970 EC oK
18:22 ©1/51 2 9211556 G3 NG 80
18:26 @1/25 2 9211556 G3 oK
op:@1 ©0/68 @ 16046874460 oK 39
2p:05 ©1/00 2 604 683 5214 EC oK
@9:36 ©@1/@3 3 604 687 26081 EC oK
1@:41 0000 %] 4808117 oK 38
19:41 ©00/@0 %) 48028117 oK 38
1@:46 ©3/38 e 4164915301 EC oK
19:56 ©2/22 5 9787144 EC oK
11:93 ©2/59 6 ggs 735 9333 G3 oK
11:13 ©01/@9 2 9954200316 HS oK
11:16 0120 3 8107553238 EC oK
11:18 ©0/0@ %] 4808117 oK 3@
11:20 ©0/48 2 4163647813 EC oK
11:26 ©0/00 %] 3256370 oK 3@
@a/57 2 325 6370 EC oK

216 0OCT.@4 11:27



Cassels Brock & Blackwell

BARRISTERS & SOLICITORS  TRADE MARK AGENTS

SCOTIA PLAZA, SUITE 2100, 40 KING STREET WEST, TORONTO, CANADA MsH 3C2
TELEPHONE (416) 869-5300 FAX (416) 360-8877

OUR FILE NO: 73402-1
LAWYER NO: 275

DATE: Friday, October 4, 1996

PLEASE SEND THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS TO:

FAX NO: 325-6370

NAME: Mr. Steve Lowden

COMPANY: c¢clo Ministry of Education and Training

CITY: Toronto

TELEPHONE:

ORIGINALS SENT BY: Mail TDX Courier Not Sent| X
FROM: Brian Donovan TELEPHONE: 869-5452

NUMBER OF PAGES INCLUDING COVER PAGE: | 2

|F YOU EXPERIENCE PROBLEMS IN RECEIVING, PLEASE CALL:

fax operator AT 869-5447
START SENDING AT: FINISH SENDING AT:
COMMENTS:

Thi & Gl 3

N R g L o contain confidential Information intended only for the person(s) named abovo Any other distribution,
los rohibited. It you

onginal transmission to us by mail withoul m;ik]ngh:vgo;?yc.,ewed this telecopy In error, please notity us immediatety by telephone and retum the

| 1 : 2
nternational Affiliation CASSELS « POULIOT » DOUGLAS « NORIEGA Toronto ¢ Montréal » Vancouver * Mexico City



Cassels Brock & Blackwell

BARRISTERS & SOLICITORS « TRADE MARK AGENTS

SOOTIA PLAZA, SUITE 2100, 40KING STREET WEST, TORONTO, CANADA M5H 3c2
TELEPHONE (416) 869-5300 FAX (416) 360-8877

WRITER'S DIRECT LINE: (416) 869-5452
OUR FILE NO:

October 4, 1996

Mr. Steve Lowden

Chair
Sub-Panel on Education Finance

Ministry of Education & Training
Mowat Block

24th Floor

900 Bay Street

Toronto, ON M7A 1.2

Dear Mr. Lowden:
Re: Subpanel on Education Finance

My letter to you and other members of the Subpanel on Education Finance of
September 27, while sent on the firm letterhead of Cassels Brock & Blackwell, was
unauthorized by the firm. Further, | have been advised that had the firm been aware of
the letter, it would not have considered acting in this matter at all. Consequently, | am

writing formally to withdraw my September 27, 1996 letter.

ou that | do not believe that the PSA intends to proceed with

In any case, | can advise y
d, Cassels Brock

an application for judicial review; however, if it does decide to procee
& Blackwell will not consider acting in the matter on their behalf.

Yours very truly,
CASSELS BROCK & BLACKWELL

3 35, Yoo

Brian Donovan
BD/jvms

| i dag
Nernational Affiliation CASSELS « POULIOT « DOUGLAS « NORIEGA Toronto * Montréal » Vancouver * Mexico City



This is Exhibit "F" referred to in the Affidavit

of Brian Donovan sworn before me on this 9th day

of December, 1996.
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URA , 6o
MARGARET Mwnpol?l;\o mﬂ‘ﬁ{%"
Municipality Carr, Barristers and SolicitorSs

Goodman an
Espires January 19, 1999.
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(Mra McLeod) ,
...and theix right to legal representation kecause of direct

intimidation from your office.

Miniscer, these citizens pelieved when they came into this
place today - and they are hera - that they had been bullijed into
silence by your goveznment. Thay asked in a lettex to the Premier
why does this government pelieve that it is frae to manipulate
the law. Do you not consider this to be a diract interference
with the rights ot citizens to be heard and to have legal
repreaentation? IS this not —

The Speaker: Thank You.

' Hon Mr Leachs That’s even a ctxetch for that party. We made
an inquiry as to whethexr this was a sarious allegation. The law
firm said they didn't know about 1it.

By the way —

' H ooa
Nou 7 '96 16:18  FROM 20082320280800 1008
‘Interjectioas.

_Tha Speakar: Order. Order. 1 appreciate the fact that the
member asked the questiocn. I presume you'd like to hear the
anawer. .

Hoxz Mz Leach: JusC by the way so everypbody’'s aware, thie is
the law fixm of the former l=ader of the party. Liberal Party.
navid peterscn. If anybedy thinks that we’re going to call and
try to intimidate a 1aw firm like that, it is racher silly. There

L wae absolutely no attempt to intimidata‘anybodyi?We’mada'an
! inquiry as to whether thig was seriocus. We didn’t hear any mores

; ‘3fter that. What the law Firm does is cthelr business. 1f they’re

that .easily incimidated they're not very goed lawysrs.

.
J |
s
:
;”
;

FAMILY RESPONSIBILITY OFFICE

 Ma Shelley Martel (Sudbury East): I want to rétﬁrn_to the
Attorney General with respact to the family support plan.

T Minister, to data in our office we have received over 80
o enquiries on cases from women and children right across Sudoury

: East. Wa received all of our cases and wa reviewed them last
waak, and I can tell you that the overwhelming majority of those
cases involved women and children who used to receive regulaxr
sgggort payments until you cut 290 ‘staff and closad the regional
office. '

Three waeks ago 10 boxes of unopened mail left the Sudbury
office to be dealt with comewhare in Toronto. NO doubt, thousands
of other files have also come Lo —oronto and were probably among
the boxes that we saw today on the fourth £loor, totally
‘unsecured, all.over the £loor in a public area.

I want to ask you today: What arxe you going te do ginca your

office is completaly unfunctioning at this point in time, what
are you going te do to ensure that the thousands of women ang

<% TOTAL PAGE.@04 A
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office made the call.

Hon John Sncbelen (Ministex -of Bducatiocn and Training): 1

want to thank tha Leader of the cpposition for the guestiom.

Howaver, this question deals with the Who Does What committee and
r would defer chis quastion to +he minister to whom that

committee is responsible.

Hon Al Leach (Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing): I
could add some 1ight to this question. Yes, the Who Does What
panel did raceive & letter indicating that the law £irm of
Cassels Brock was going to impose an injunction on the Cxombie
gubpanel on aducation. The application seemad so f£rivolous that
my axecutive assistant called Caseels Brock and maid, “Axre you
smrious?” They said: "Wa’ra not aware of chis at all. We’ll get
pack to ycu.” We never heard any more about it until such time a5
we got a letter fyom the lawyer ia question withdrawing the
_application. That's all we know.

Nrs Mchaod: I must confass that T am surprised that we would
go quickly get an admission Erom the minister that his affice
contacted the law firm. I trust he is now awara that the results
of that direct intervention in legal representation on the part
of a group of citizens who wanted to raisa concerus abeut this
government’s actions, that that kind of direct jntervantion with
a law firm has not only resulted in this particular lawyer being
required tao drop the casa. that these citizens have lost their
legal representation bpecausge the lawyer was required to withdraw
his rep:esenta:ion on thair behalf, that these citizens have now
ween denied both their right To raigse their concerns and theix
right to legal representation because -of dirsct intimidation fxom

your office.

Minister, these citizens believed whezn they came into this
place today — and they are hexe = thac they had been bullied into
cilence Ly your governmant. They ask in the letter tO the
Premier, why does this government believe rhat it is free to
manipulaca...

1,-152% follows
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The Speaker: Accorney General?
1520

Hon Mr Raxnick: Az I have jndicated to this Housec before,
che family support plan has baeen 2 major problem in terms of the’
way clients = '

Interjections.
Tha Speaker: Order. Attorrey General?

Eon MTr Barnick: TO conclude, I hope that the members
cpposite have the sames passicn for passing the bill chat’s now
pefora the Housc 8O that we can ccrrect tha problams in the
family gupport plan once and for all.

rnrerjections.

Mr Wayne wattlaufar (Ritchendr): I wish yourd shut up 8° we
could near.

The Speaksr: vember for KitcheneI, that's unpaxliamentar?
language. [ ask you t° withdraw.

Mr wettlaufer: Wichdraw.

% * =

Mrs Lyn.ncLaod (Leader of the Oppoaition): Ny questiod is
for the Minister of BEducation and wraining. Ministex, today 2
group of parents from 27Frunkland commuaity school delivered this
letter to the premier. Their lett=z cXpresses thelr concern with
an incident which they feel constitutes a serious interference
with the administratican of justics.

These pazrents. on benalf of their parent-school agscciation,

had engaged a lawyer with funds which they raised through
contributions from their owd pockets. They asked the lawyer, who
was aenother parent at Franklin school, to act on their behalf in
raising concerns apout cthe subpancl on education that was set up
wader the Who Does What committea. Thess pareants wezrs prepared =9
challenga the lagalizy”bf tne work of thé'subcommittae,'dha '
constitution of the subcommittes and in fact were prepaxed tO
seek an injunctilco against the work of the gubcommittee.
Miniscer. the lawyeT whom they had gengaged was subsaquently asked
* by the chairman of his law firm, & 1eading law . Eirm here in the
city of Torxonto. to withdraw from rhe case. He was also
instructed to write 2 leccer toO Steve Lewden of the subpanel on
education in which he would withdraw the reprasentaticns he had
made on behalf of his clients. This reqpiremant that he drop the
casa ané that he write this letter wag made becausa a cali had

come from the province to 2 senior member in the firm.

Minister, 1‘'m sure you would agree that this ??institute

does constitute a serious violation of the rights of individuals
to express concerns and tO have legal rrpresenvation, & ask

.

whethar you ara aware of this situacion and I ask whether your



This is Exhibit "G" referred to in the Affidavit

of Brian Donovan sworn before me on this Sth day

of December, 1996.

--------
---------
--------
.
-------------------
-------
-----
-----------

MARGARET VENTURA, 2 commissioner, tie.,
Municipality of Metropelitan Toronto, for
Goodman and Carr, Barristers and Solicitors.

Expires January 19, 1999.




e eeeas e

PR

-uBad Jjoeq awed,, I pue s|jed wnl B:. pIp uosoie -s@ 0AlNDDX AW julf) SNOJOAL) ajuel] Jo uojBROSSE JJEISIud

]
3[payP 15313uf JO PJPuU0d B auop ‘yopedsaidol 05 PaIdAS uoneaydde oYL, -1ed ay) pajuasaidal ueaouo(] \
1534} pey 9y pjes usaouo(d Ingd je8o) 0) sudzpp Jo sjydu ay) *10119] 2} NOqE st 0} ‘|]PM ‘pies ueaouod Jsjuapp Aw .,_

“JuauIIaA03 2y} sujede  ul uopUAAIBIUY J0ANp sE 3AoU -oejg pue yooig ‘S|asse) ‘uLnyy  JO 3dudIdJIR] jeopyiod syuwuad "
judjpo B - sk UO[je[o0ssB  JJBIS s,uosalleiy  palseld pod 1O Mme[ S, uuaoun(] pouoyd uosoy) 1EW JBUILOIIAUS U Ul ajado| !
quaied puepjuely oay) uo uy ) porPW POl B B pagpomowyppe oLr] jued | ‘Jakme] e ue sv,,
38} [Im wiajqoid B sem 31U} Ji youay ,, SNOHRS nok a1y, ‘pies  ‘pody PN uf Jopea] jeraqyl Aq oBar] |V JAISUIN saulVv
295 0) 21838 PJJu0d JIn) gouop puv Jjo0ag s[sseD pajIed Jueisis  pasied sgm ONss| ay) Jaje ‘Lep jedpuni 0} juesisse  aAlno?
j0u . pey - usaouod PpIvs oH , -SIny L, 1sef aanje|sidoy ayy uj -x2 Sk 9[01 S|y uj uuy sy poled

qof sjYy 0} 1821y} JO IUIINIA) -gouraoxd yim ndsip ‘pajomsuE o1om suop  OUM ‘UOSAPIN uyjor  JoAMEL

-uj yeonjjod uaaq pey a131[) 1BYY Ul J0OT[0s 0JUOIOT, pojuos -sonb 0say) ssajun ‘uoiLoNpd jsutede epeued saddn Jo AR

. ) . s1dwod ¢ Buy
: uonsad3ns Aue snojno 31180 _ . opjuy uo suopepuounuoddl  -POS mer] 3y o) ute|e

. .__o_ua_um_m . pue _u_u.ww”__ e.w__om . m.ﬁ_ﬂ_nﬁ .zm%@zcn =E=m oyews 0) dn 1S sem 1PIYM ‘oued  -1OpISUOD s} oy sfes _.?omcﬁ _

-se7) jo Jouped e ‘uapang i€l L, SN A oy Sujduojjeyp 1opio 1Nod € Jualp!

~ajdpupd Jo Ja)jeut B S8 paugdjs Y it 1ot 300S 0) paudIEaIL} JAND| UL @ SE UOIJRI00Sse [001S JJeisilia

. -gpuasojon  -ded B dolp 0} wyy padioj ul

JO SULID) J1AY) puL ‘UISOLYD ‘pred  me| S|y pies ueaouo(l ueptl
o8 siaquiout joued mor noqe usui
S1amsuu papueuidp 1and| 3L .u1aA03 jepoufaoad ayj) wiolj o.ns)
*s3j) -saxd jeopitjod 0y pamoq 3t asned,
foorpas  -oq wuy mul Sy woyy paugdisar!

-33,, §BY pue uuly me| Jayjoue

yim qof & punoj ay uay) aouls

. ‘qof. sy 0] paled) 3 asned
‘aq pakaqo 8y pies uvaouod

‘ . . ‘uopep

-osse Jjejs-jualed ayy) 10j 108 Jou

apoe §1f Sujpunowins

pinom uwy a1y jey) Sujdes pue jo eang, ue jnoqe Supujeduiod e 24 shus sakne] oL V.|
1s1yy .oy} SupmBIpYIIM 19Q0100 fugpmo (2A91S “JIEYD s joued wa1u043 NOILVDONAA
Apga uj 1an)9] Jaujous LM 0) o) q) uopjeoosse au) Jo Jiey TIVWS ¥313d Al

-2q U QJ0IM 01 ‘DT wqdag uQ -
‘uopEaNpd Uo joued

.qns Joim $90Q, OUM SUAW £ooxoas pued-qns

119403 [upuiIAcad a3} Yiiam 3) d
e P swignup pioeakg  OL yurejdwod

paJapio sem 31 pjes ueaouo(]
‘s10U
-ped Jouas om) (i Supjpow
@ 0) pajjed sBm 1 ‘uuyy S|y uj
auoawos 0) Jjed auoyd s,uosay) :
-\ JoyJB J8Y) pfes __E>o=oa_ 50 i o, . . sey| ai] 1AM JOOYDS 0W0I0],
~oolgns. sjy) uo Aepiajsel BRI g G TIM  1sea ue ‘jooyps Ayunuiuiod puel

1mb oy JoAmey JedIo, sAes
w.ﬁ_E.:.WT,Zﬂﬁgq,_m%.:_8

=}

90/ €| MNP



do SE ‘351 JUaLiild 5w

‘Temypeld B 120l s ) _ l ﬂ._ ﬁ%.%mn uo paseq 3 SJUALUSSASSE

Jo Ly 3ans £ed snogpsaid 2 ;a1 ey UOepuaLIWodal STY LM

su0L1adNS §UEAOUO( Y pauous 34 - yyea) 5,e11izpoD [nd 0y Mot pajens

- +peajsu] 1oy)3] U} A0IM oym 3£ | -uowap Apeau[e sey 2JquioL) N

-mej 3y} ‘ueaouoq ueHd m:m_o:n . L1021 Xy JO uojysanb 3ty 10

Jsufese pappoap JAME| B 110%9 -ajquo10) "I AQ dn I[ING PUE 1240

P TN “UOSAUEI UUOr EISIS | ¢ paysom s 3} ssapun [esododd Aue
-s8 S J0 ysap 2y uo dn papu@ 19} - 10} Bourg)dacoe Aressasdl UM 1A -

BEIE] .h%&ﬂmﬂh ﬁ&ﬂ-ﬁgw e sy 14011 sazj[eal pue ‘sasuas

IV 1915]UJ SIENTY [edidlunit 5V &3] 01 u3n01q U39q 58U UBUILIGACS
) s s3ujpasaod [etopnf ajepaut - au Jey) s} uoseal Apexi oW V-

' -y, Supuajealy) pue s1amsue 3u} esodoudiejumod 8 do[aAap 0} Wi

g . i| -puuiop Joor s B 21 03 32 . g10ewl 0X}3 2} 313 03 A1qisua}
; -me| B ‘s1aqmiaul 531 JO auo paliy 1} 50 4/EM 0} PapIosP sBY }1'MON -
1| . 101 ou Smpap "oy dn sEM 31 1EUN " L lojuolql, 0ajRjy dn EU :
: Supyse ‘dnols ojquIos) au Jo ued sofyedio[Unul 21} SJEUTES[ELE O}

o, : 30 | | | -qns uopeanps au) J0 UBLLITD OF . weld & ppn pEAE I UM

10 ssaooad anpyysod § Jo yred yueod “ho'] aA21G 0) JONRI B IS PEU VA | | | . i 5y poured 5.2Qu0l) WHL azous}
-1 e a1 Ko 8} — Ajoremaoe; L pUEp{UEL] 3U) 1equiaidos Ul 0} paredazd sem JuaUNLIBAOS 3 J}
2t — Bujjo3] U] ALY PIOM 112 | | | “ooal T (ootos Aypmuinad Puet | - | | g5 payoo 3y ‘outp s1 M 15T
fou,"SuyuoOU pue SuTAIaNS WA | el Jo sjuared U Aymq 03 3ut |, 1od 25TI0Y € 0JU} E[I1ZPOD W
"~ guy) e} dad Supyoos @ watd -1} Sem JuaunLIan0d Uy Aum 158 | pInoo An3 ay, “Suiop SA1QWA)
uaA}S |00y J3U 03 1O PAUaL. 02501 PO UAT JoPETT feseart | Ly 5q |18 11 BRI P uopezjuealo
Sey AABY PIOM sospmoudimodjeaud | | | . udaum *fepiasak popad uoisand | “al [edjpjumul ‘uoEINpR ‘saxe) A9
oy, Jiestyy ojquo) I ©1 1 | | Supmp yjam Asnoporrens pagene "doxd SupuISOuco SAATERUI [BRUIA
70| [eUL3HI0 J|2U} SSAIPPE 0] pepiRpR -map sem sajelado a|quIoL) pred |, oad Jo aj3urey adny 3} o) adieur
pey sjuared puepueld 3ui Ji pouad Kem ay) pue sajerado yied 5,usand ) suuojal aapysod Aue J1 -a|quIoI) ' HH—Wd g
_dey aney pmoM s} J0 3UoN | emomupzouarmp il 7, | -1} 10} POD YUreL) pure 100l au} Uo S .
. -+ moqoud o e amaaowad |- ||| - pgay Am Sueq ‘sean A UOIET A | ; g S
a1} aajos 0} asoyd uosayie I .. [eqoN 3 soAasap Y ‘23ureud : Kep K13A9 paydwa) We | ‘1andmoy | - : Hﬁ muo -ﬂ‘.ﬁ
ol o Em T uw_h:w. s H%w% meu,hn:wﬁhwwﬂ__ﬁ o661 10 I[E} 9U) U ojuaIaL, SSH : g )
Supe) o4.L (uPe1 TN 0 upp1030 oy} d g Jopunaid uj u oesy- e
:..ascv_ﬂwa ary.) dpoug spsse0 | | |1 100 10D i o1 peal st TeH SN 2 pigupweBb ey |- Om@ wox).
18 s3ym31q aU} 0} Pies UosWEN - £9HQY, U3 ot 2 oD (1S NOA JEY) 13A0S1P :
ek 10 s yoer W se{ [ | oHew0 U1 I D pim Rl |, el S0 ‘mok 16 500{ Nk . QAISeAH
gnojoAH] sem JaRal s, usaoucd I .+ 4uared A19A3 al2YM jujod ayy 0}  woym 1ng ‘UM ed pue NOpUEd _ - .

JToUAM 33pyBu K{[ead 3,us30P 11 i || ‘aewemsinuo s|sHO B BUpUAAU| 18 1. Jeald (e ‘sAem JUABLIP UAA3S . -
S . Kepaaqsak pes au, JuB[E). 5]y pajexisuoutap AuEp | 1117 odar 2y pue yaun] 183 03 sweid | | . Jaqreg uyor
_dpysuope[a Ju-1otpRNos N UL -] - sEY UaRqOUS UYOf “2ouku UOH 1 a1 uBYM 91qUIOID PIART YV - _—

gouateMIul 1eonnod sjjuuiad yeql .“ . -ganpa uo Eosac:m_:..houﬁ ._mz_cv ] ..aZmE_E AL 5 3 ok u:a.uE : ) caﬂo.—c L.

JUSLITUOJAUS TR U} 3108 0} pazed .0 surejd AQUIOID "IN 33 Y | ‘tooU10] PUE A[PUBH) 05 ‘2]i3e 03 . ;

. -ad jou L] JAME] [ETYR UE SV~ . VE espuoaC ;| | | o vreon oy, "anIN pAOM 3U3 SULSD

g a1 WoJj paudisal NUIS seq .. 100 [e[oTId S{y) 343008 0] PAUIED 21 21qUIOI) PIAEQ YILM EUI0D au |
«. ay nq ‘pakaqo ueaouo( "I 29U -uf 210Ul 3q MOU JU3[W aoupacad o, i e m_.._E:mr jnoqe y[e} ‘ueaut 1214
. 1911 3Y) SULMEIPUI A[[EALIO) | *dn majq resodoad uojjeuredjeure | .Er ol node A P Atons

Uopmor] -1 01 JOYIR] AU B AL | | |, 21 MOH 3ujeos 19V "Aepo) Il | O O[56000 MAU B D
pure 3]y ay) doIp ay papueUIp, MU © U} UOREPUIUTLORL ) ﬁa .ﬂ.@aﬁ_mo_ ey ayy uj yeaq A0 7 -
a0 at uo gy pojney sassoq | | . B4 ajquioD "IN 05 PIPUOTS L IoA03 1S{[EUmOf ES
s,ueaoucd TN ‘Kep xau AL “|. . -elusey jusunIaA0d 3yl ) Supd S
I s
9661 '8 32quAA°N
1. LIGIHGE




IN THE MATTER OF A REQUEST FOR AN INVESTIGATION MADE TO THE OFFICE OF THE INTEGRITY COMMISSIONER

IN THE MATTER OF a Request for an
Investigation made to the Office of the
Integrity Commissioner in respect of certain
conduct of the Minister of Municipal Affairs
and Housing and a Member of his Political
Staff

AFFIDAVIT OF BRIAN DONOVAN

BRIAN DONOVAN
Barrister and Solicitor
200 King Street West
Suite 2300

Toronto, On MS5H 3W5

Brian Donovan
(416) 595-2415
(416) 595-0567 - Fax
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WRITER'S DIRECT LINE: (416) 869-5452
OUR FILE NO:

VIA DELIVERY AND FAX
September 26, 1996

Mr. Steve Lowden

Chair

Sub-Panel on Education Finance
Ministry of Education & Training
Mowat Block

24th Floor

900 Bay Street

Toronto, ON M7A 1L2

Dear Mr. Lowden:
Re: Sub-panel on Education Finance

We have been consulted by the Parent/ Staff Association of Frankland Community
School (the "PSA") in respect of the appointment and activities of your sub-panel on
education finance. Our client, the PSA, has repeatedly attempted to obtain pertinent
information from your sub-panel which ought reasonably to be accessible to such a
concerned organization under the circumstances. Indeed, the terms of reference of
your sub-panel have been requested, which request has been refused.

Accordingly, we have advised our client that the activities and deliberations of your
sub-panel are subject to judicial challenge on the basis of basic administrative law
principles of administrative reasonableness and procedural fairness.

We understand that your sub-panel proposes to report its findings and conclusions
on or about October 5, 1996, and that such report will have an impact upon the
interests of many parties, including our client. Consequently, unless your sub-panel
becomes immediately more forthcoming, we shall be seeking instructions to
commence immediate judicial proceedings to restrain further activity and
deliberation by your sub-panel by way of injunction, and certiorari to quash the sub-
panel's constitution, with prohibition in aid to preclude the delivery of your report
by the proposed October 5, 1996 deadline.

Without purporting to be exhaustive, our client's legitimate concerns include the
following:

LTS Chsarls PotLiod Dutaiys NeriEay ' “
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As indicated above, the terms of reference for your sub-panel have been
requested, and this request has been refused. In contrast, we have most
recently been provided (as of September 25, 1996) with a set of draft terms of
reference. Are we to understand that the sub-panel on education finance has
been proceeding with its investigations and deliberations to date in the
absence of final terms of reference? If so, the sub-panel's activities have
clearly been carried on without proper authority.

In this connection, we require immediate answers to the following questions:

(a) Do final terms of reference for the sub-panel on education finance
exist?

(b)  If such terms of reference do exist, when were they adopted?

()  If such terms of reference do exist, kindly produce a copy of same
immediately.

By letter dated September 20, 1996, Ms. Colleen D. Morris on behalf of the
PSA, requested that you notify the PSA as to the dates on which the sub-panel
will be receiving deputations. Ms. Morris has received no reply. Please
indicate at once when you will be receiving oral deputations from parties
whose interests will obviously be affected by any recommendations which
your sub-panel may make, including our client.

We are distressed to have been informed that the activities of the sub-panel
have been conducted under what can only be described as an aura of secrecy.
Our understanding is that information in respect of the location of the sub-
panel's proceedings has been denied when requested, even when such
requests have been for the purpose of delivering relevant materials to the
sub-panel. Such a practice is clearly unacceptable, and gives rise to an
inference of bad faith.

The legal authority for the appointment of the sub-panel (if any) appears to
have been kept mysterious. In this connection, we require immediate
answers to the following questions:

(a) How were the members of the sub-panel appointed?

(b)  Are the sub-panel members paid for their work, and, if so, on what
basis?

(c)  What was the selection process utilized to ensure a fair representation
of interested parties in the course of the selection of the sub-panel;
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(d) From what pool were the members of the sub-panel selected, and was
the process of selection made public?

(e) By means of what legal instrument (if any) were the members of the
sub-panel appointed?

5. The composition of the sub-panel on education finance is seriously defective,
in that it fails to represent parties whose interests will clearly be affected by
any report or recommendations made by the sub-panel. Most blatantly, tk_le

Metropolitan Toronto School Board is not represented. Equally, the Ontario
Secondary School Teachers Federation is unrepresented. We are advised that
knowledgeable members of these and other educational organizations are
willing and prepared to serve on the sub-panel. None of them have been
selected. Why not?

Under the circumstances, We€ have advised our client that any report Of
recommendations made by your sub-panel as presently constituted will be
fundamentally defective, in that it is not clear that the sub-panel was ever properly
constituted, and legitimate apprehensions of bias, and procedural and
administrative unfairness, arise. I now write, further to Ms. Morris' letter of
September 20, 1996 to request that your sub-panel immediately cease its activities
and deliberations, pending resolution of the very serious concerns outlined above. 1
trust we shall receive your early and co-operative response, and that it will not be
necessary to obtain the assistance of the courts t0 restrain the sub-panel's current

activities in order to ensure a fair and equitable result.
Please govern yourself accordingly-

Yours very truly,
CASSELS BROCK & BLACKWEL

N @ N

Per: J. Brian Donovan

JBD/tz
cc: Ms. Gisele Lalonde
Ms. Enid Slack
Mr. James Downey
Ms. Linda Rydholm
Mr. John Snobelen (Delivered)
Ms. Gay Young
Ms. Colleen Morris
Ms. Maria Bahadur
Ms. Jane Archibald
Mr. Chris Malkiewich (fax: 751-7079) OF/039/1z
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EX[‘]IBII‘"L‘-"

IN THE MATTER OF a request for an
Investigation made to the Office of the Integrity
Commissioner in respect of certain conduct of
the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing
and a Member of his Political Staff

AFFIDAVIT OF DAVID SPRING

|, David Spring, of the City of Toronto in the Municipality of Metropolitan Toronto,
MAKE OATH AND SAY AS FOLLOWS:

1. | am the Senior Counsel in the Municipal and Planning Law section of the Legal
Services Branch of the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing.

2. The Province of Ontario, as represented by the Minister of Municipal Affairs and
Housing, required assistance from advisors and consultants in reviewing the service
delivery responsibilities of the municipal and provincial governments. This advisory
group became known as the "Who Does What Panel". The participation of the advisors
was confirmed by letter and the consultants were retained by the Minister of Municipal

Affairs and Housing in his capacity as a Minister of the Crown.

3. On Friday, September 27, | was given a copy of a letter from Brian Donovan of
the firm of Cassels Brock and Blackwell which | immediately circulated to my
supervisor and to senior officials within the Ministry. A copy of this letter is attached
hereto as Exhibit "A".

4, After a discussion with Ministry officials in which | offered a preliminary opinion :
to the effect that the legal position espoused in the letter was without merit, | was i

instructed to prepare a reply for my signature.



-0.

5. At the beginning of the following week, | prepared such a rely, after researching
the applicable law. My reply answered a number of the questions raised by Mr.
Donovan in his letter of September 26, and addressed the legal issues raised by him

in that letter.

6. On October 1 or 2, | telephoned Mr. Donovan, the author of the letter referred
to above, and advised him that | would be responding to this letter in writing. He

replied that the would await my response.

7. On Friday, October 4, before sending my reply to Mr. Donovan, | received from
a Ministry official, a copy of letter from Mr. Donovan. A copy of that letter is attached
hereto as Exhibit "B".

8. As a consequence of receiving the copy of the letter referred to in paragraph 7
above, | did not send the response referred to above, and took no further action in the

matter.

9. | make this Affidavit for the purpose of assisting the Integrity Commission in this

David Spring /

matter, and for no other purpose.

SWORN before me at the City of Toronto,

in the Municipality of Metropolitan Toronto
~_

S St Nttt “omanaa”

this day of January, 1997

Commissioner for Taking Affidavits
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EXHIBIT "A"

WRITER'S DIRECT UNE: (416) 869-5452
OUR FLLE NO:

VIA DELIVERY AND FAX
September 26, 1996

Mr. Steve Lowden

Chair
Sub-Panel on Education Finance

Ministry of Education & Training
Mowat Block

24th Floor

900 Bay Street

Toronto, ON M7A 1L2

Dear Mr. Lowden:
Re: Sub-panel on Education Finance

We have been consulted by the Parent/ Staff Association of Frankland Community
School (the "PSA") in respect of the appointment and activities of your sub-panel on
education finance. Our client, the P3A, has repeatedly attempted to obtain pertinent
information from your sub-panel which ought reasonably to be accessible to such a
concerned organization under the circumstances. Indeed, the terms of refe.ence of
your sub-panel have been requested, which request has been refused.

Accordingly, we have advised our client that the activities and deliberations of your
sub-panel are subject to judicial challenge on the basis of basic administrative law
principles of administrative reasonableness and procedural fairness.

We understand that your sub-panel proposes to report its findings and conclusions

on or about October 5, 1996, and that such report will have an impact upon the ~
interests of many parties, including our client. Consequently, unless your sub-panel:
becomes immediately more forthcoming, we shall be seeking instructions to
commence immediate judicial proceedings to cestrain further activity and
deliberation by your sub-panel by way of injunction. and certiorari to quash the sub-
panel’s constitution, with prohibition in aid to preclude the delivery of your report

bv the proposed October 5, 1996 deadline.

Without purporting to be exhaustive, vur client’s legitimate concerns include the

following:
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As indicated above, the terms of reference for your sub-panel have been
requested, and this request has been refused. In contrast, we have most
recently been provided (as of September 25, 1996) with a set of draft terms of
reference. Are we to understand that the sub-panel on education finance has
been proceeding with its investigations and deliberations to date in the
absence of final terms of reference? If so, the sub-panel's activities have
clearly been carried on without proper authority.

In this connection, we require immediate answers to the following questions:

(a) Do final terms of reference for the sub-panel on education finance
exist?

(b)  If such terms of reference do exist, when were they adopted?

(c) If such terms of reference do exist, kindly produce a copy of same
immediately.

By letter dated September 20, 1996, Ms. Colleen D. Morris on behalf of the
PSA, requested that you notify the PSA as to the dates on which the sub-panel
will be receiving deputations. Ms. Morris has received no reply. Please
indicate at once when you will be receiving oral deputations from parties
whose interests will obviously be affected by any recommendations which
your sub-panel may make, including our client.

We are distressed to have been informed that the activities of the sub-panel
have been conducted under what can only be described as an aura of secrecy.
Our understanding is that information in respect of the location of the sub-
panel's proceedings has been denied when requested, even when such
requests have been for the purpose of delivering relevant materials to the
sub-panel. Such a practice is clearly unacceptable, and gives rise to an
inference of bad faith.

The legal authority for the appointment of the sub-panel (if any) appears ta.
have been kept mysterious. In this connection, we require immediate

answers to the following questions:
(a)  How were the members of the sub-panel appointed?

()  Are the sub-panel members paid for their work. and, if so. on what
basis?

(c)  What was the selection process utilized to ensure a fair representation
of :nterested parties in the course ot the selection of the sub-ranel
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(d)  From what pool were the members of the sub-panel selected, and was
the process of selection made public?

() By means of what legal instrument (if any) were the members of the
sub-panel appointed?

5.  The composition of the sub-panel on education finance is seriously defective,
in that it fails to represent parties whose interests will clearly be affected by
any report or recommendations made by the sub-panel. Most blatantly, the
Metropolitan Toronto School Board is not represented. Equally, the Ontario
Secondary School Teachers Federation is unrepresented. We are advised that
knowledgeable members of these and other educational organizations are
willing and prepared to serve on the sub-panel. None of them have been

selected. Why not?

Under the circumstances, we have advised our client that any report or
recommendations made by your sub-panel as presently constituted will be
fundamentally defective, in that it is not clear that the sub-panel was ever properly
constituted, and legitimate apprehensions of bias, and procedural and
administrative unfairness, arise. [ now write, further to Ms. Morris’ letter of
September 20, 1996 to request that your sub-panel immediately cease its activities
and deliberations, pending resolution of the very serious concerns outlined above. [
trust we shall receive your early and co-operative response, and that it will not be
necessary to obtain the assistance of the courts to restrain the sub-panel's current
activities in order to ensure a fair and equitable result.

Please govern yourself accordingly.

Yours very truly,
CASSELS BROCK & BLACKWEL

Per: ]. Brian Donovan

JBD/tz .-
o Ms. Gisele Lalonde

Ms. Enid Slack

Mr. James Downey

Ms. Linda Rydholm

Mr. John Snobelen (Delivered)

Ms. Gav Youny,

Ay Culleen Morns

vs Mana Bahadur

\is lane Archibaid

r Ches Malkiewich dfax 7517079
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Cassels Brock & Blackwell

BARRISTERS & SOLICITORS * TRADE MARK AGENTS

) SCOTIA PLAZA. SUITE 2100, 40 KING STREET WEST, TORONTO, CANADA M5H 2C2
TELEPHONE (416) 869-5300 FAX (416) 360-8877

WRITER'S DIRECT LINE  (416) 8688-5452

V EXHIBIT "B"
Ifr OUR FLE NO-

October 4, 1936

Mr. Steve Lowden

Chair

Sub-Panel on Education Finance
Ministry of Education & Training
Mowat Block

24th Floor

900 Bay Street

Toronto, ON M7A 112

Dear Mr. Lowden:

Re: Subpanel on Education Finance

My letter to you and other members of the Subpanel on Education Finance of
September 27, while sent on the firm letterhead of Cassels Brock & Blackwell, was
unauthorized by tha firm. Further, | have been advised that had the firm been aware of
the letter, it would not have considered acting in this matter at all. Consequently. | am
writing formally to withdraw my September 27, 1996 letter.

In any case, | can advise you that | do not believe that the PSA intends to proceed with

an application for judicial review; however, if it does decide to proceed, Cassels Brock
& Blackwell will not consider &cting in the matter on their behalf.

Yours very truly,
CASSELS BROCK & BLACKWELL

) >

Brian Donovan
BD/jvms

Intarnaticnai Aft tation CASSELS ¢ 2CU 107 » DOUGLAS » NORIEGA Toronto = Mentreal « Vancouver « Maxes Tty



IN THE MATTER OF A REQUEST FOR AN INVESTIGATION MADE TO THE OFFICE OF THE INTEGRITY COMMISSIONER

IN THE MATTER OF a Request for an
Investigation made to the Office of the
Integrity Commissioner in respect of
certain conduct of the Minister of
Municipal Affairs and Housing and a
Member of his Political Staff

AFFIDAVIT OF DAVID SPRING
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Cassels Brock & Blackwell  mamm's’

BARRISTERS & SOLICITORS * TRADE MARK AGENTS

, SCOTIA PLAZA, SUITE 2100, 40 KING STREETWEST, TORONTO, CANADA MsH 2C2
TELEPHONE (416) 869-5300 FAX (416) 360-8877

Yo

October 4, 1996

EXHIBIT "B" WRITER'S DIRECT LINE (416) 889-5452
K/ OUA FLE NO:

Mr. Steve Lowden

Chair

Sub-Panel on Education Finance
Ministry of Education & Training
Mowat Block

24th Floor

900 Bay Street

Toronto, ON M7A 1L2

Dear Mr. Lowden:

Re: Subpanel on Education Finance

My letter lo you and other members of the Subpanel on Education Finance of
September 27, while sent on the firm letterhead of Cassels Brock & Blackwell, was
unauthorized by tha tiem. Further, | have been advised that had the firm been aware of
the letter, it would not have considered acting in this matter at all. Consequently. | am
writing formally to withdraw my September 27, 1996 letter.

In any case, | can advise you that | do not believe that the PSA intends to proceed with
an application for judicial review; however. if it does decide to proceed, Cassels Brock
& Blackwell will not consider zcting in the matter on their behalf.

Yours very truly,
CASSELS BROCK & BLACKWELL

)2

Brian Donoven
BD/jvms

ik el - _AAney AS NCRIEGA Toronio * Mertrgai » Vancouvar Maxes 27
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EXHIBIT " 6 "

IN THE MATTER OF a request for an
Investigation made to the Office of the
Integrity Commissioner in respect of certain
conduct of the Minister of Municipal Affairs
and Housing and a Member of his Political
Staff

AFFIDAVIT OF JOHN MATHESON

(Exhibit "A" to the Affidavit of Allan F. Leach)

I, JOHN ANGUS MATHESON, of the City of Etobicoke in the Municipality of

Metropolitan Toronto, make oath and do solemnly swear as follows:

1. At all times relevant to these proceedings, | was the executive assistant to
the Honourable Allan F. Leach, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing. | am
also a barrister and solicitor called in 1993 to the Bar of Ontario. As such, | have

knowledge of the matters hereinafter deposed to:

2; As executive assistant to the Minister, | am responsible for the planning and
operations of his office. In particular, | manage his strategic communications and
am responsible for the operation of his legislative agenda. Although | am a lawyer

by profession, | do not act as legal counsel to the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and

Housing.

3. On or about September 27th, 1996, | received a copy of a letter dated
September 26th, 1996, and written by J. Brian Donovan. A copy of this letter is
attached hereto as Exhibit "A". In that letter, Mr. Donovan threatened to bring an
application for an injunction to "restrain further activity and deliberation™ by the
sub-panel on education finance of the Who Does What commission. Given the
tight operational time frames under which the sub-panel was operating, | regarded

the threatened injunction as a potential communications and operational challenge.
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4, Later that day, | attended a meeting with inter alia, David Spring, Senior
Counsel to the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing at which time that letter
was discussed. Mr. Spring informed me that in his preliminary opinion, the basis
of the potential legal action against the Education Sub-Panel was ill-founded and

without legal merit.

5. After the meeting | remained concerned that notwithstanding what | believed
to be a lack of legal merit with respect to the position expressed in the Donovan
letter, the process of litigation itself might lead to an interruption in the on-going

work of the sub-panel pending a final determination of the matter.

6. | believed that in addition to the legal merits, the factor most relevant in
assessing the risk that the matter would go to court was the identity and

experience of their legal counsel.

7. With respect to the identity and experience of counsel, | believed that | knew
the author of the letter. There was a Brian Donovan known to me who had been a
classmate at the University of Toronto Law School. | was uncertain as to whether
this was the same person, however, because it was then my understanding that
Donovan had recently left the firm of Goodman & Carr to practise at Osler, Hoskin

& Harcourt.

8. In my view the identity of Mr. Donovan was relevant to the assessment of
the case in that based on my personal knowledge of him, | honestly believed

Donovan to be a highly ideological individual who would be very interested in the
case for ideological reasons. If it were him, | believed that he would be likely to

advance the case even on a pro bono basis.
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9. In the hope of obtaining more information that would indicate whether or not'
the threat of litigation was serious, | called Don Guthrie, a partner at Cassels Brock
who was known to me as a colleague. | contacted him for the purpose of
confirming whether Mr. Donovan was the same Donovan known to me,
notwithstanding that my last information was that he was still employed at Osler,

Hoskin and Harcourt.

10. With respect to the allegations contained in paragraphs 12 and 13 of the
Affidavit of J. Brian Donovan, sworn December 9, 1996, | deny that at any time |
impliedly suggested to Mr. Guthrie that Cassels, Brock should discontinue its
representation of the Association. In fact when | called | inquired into Mr.
Donovan’s seniority at the firm. Mr. Guthrie confirmed that Mr. Donovan had
recently joined the firm. | then asked if he was about 38 years old, with grey hair
and beard. Mr. Guthrie informed me that he had never met Mr. Donovan and did

not know his appearance.

11. Mr. Guthrie then asked why | was interested in Mr. Donovan. | told him that
Mr. Donovan had threatened to bring an application for an injunction relating to the
~ activities of the Who Does What panel and that | was trying to find out more about
him, and whether the threat was meant seriously, as it appeared to be frivolous

based on its absence of legal merit.

12. Mr. Guthrie told me that he was not aware of the threatened injunction. |
read a copy of Mr. Donovan'’s letter to Mr. Guthrie. Mr Gutherie expressed his

discomfort with the tone of the letter.
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13. After my call to Mr. Guthrie, | made two further calls to receptionists at
Goodman and Carr and Osler Hoskin and Harcourt, who confirmed that no one else
by the name of Brian Donovan worked at those firms. Based on those calls, and
my call to Mr. Guthrie, | concluded that the author of the letter and the person

known to me were one and the same.

14, Accordingly, on my assumption based on all of the above that the author of
the letter and the Brian Donovan known to me from law school days were one and
the same, | planned the next week around the liklihood that an application to the

Courts would be made, which might present an impediment to the timliness of the

sub-committee’s presentation of its recommendations.

15. On or about October 5, 1996 | received a copy of a letter dated October 4,
1996 (Exhibit "B" to this Affidavit), wherein Mr. Donovan revoked his letter of
September 26, 1996.

16. With respect to the allegation contained in paragraph 13 of the Donovan
Affidavit, | did not contact Mr. Donovan directly because | am employed by the
Minister in a political and not a legal function. Any formal communication with Mr.
Donovan in respect of the latter’s letter of September 26 was to be undertaken by
our senior counsel, Mr. David Spring. As has already been explained herein, my
call to Mr. Guthrie was to find out information about the identity and experience of

Mr. Donovan.

17. My decision to call Mr. Gutherie was made on my own and without any

knowledge of the Hon. Allan F. Leach, M.P.P.

18. | swear this affidavit for the assistance of the Integrity Commissioner in his

inquiries into this matter, and for no other or improper purpose.



SWORN before me at the City of Toronto,

)
)
in the Municipality of Metropolitan Toronto ) ﬁ?
) )
this 2 day of January 1997 ) John A. Ma’chesoﬁj

(T30 Ui

Commissioner for Taking Affidavits
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EXHIBIT " 7 "

BRIAN DONOVAN

SAME DAY COURIER

PRIVATE & CONFIDENTIAL

January 10, 1997

The Honourable G.T. Evans, Q.C.
Office of the Integrity Commissioner
101 Bloor Street West

Suite 1301

Toronto ON M5S 227

Dear Mr. Evans:

RE: Al Leach

RE: John Matheson

The Honourable Marilyn Churley, M.P.P. for Riverdale, has provided me with copies of the
Affidavits of Mr. Leach, Mr. Matheson, Mr. Spring and Mr. Guthrie, which have been delivered

to you in connection with the above-noted matter. At the request of Ms. Churley, | deliver to
you now my Supplementary Affidavit in response to these materials.

| hope that this will be of assistance to you in your investigations. | emphasize, again, that | am
prepared to cooperate in your investigation in any manner in which | may properly do so.

Trusting that the above is satisfactory, | remain,

Yours very truly,

2yuan %@%&N

Brian Donovan
BD*ak
Encl.
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IN THE MATTER OF a Request for an
Investigation made to the Office of the Integrity
Commissioner in respect of certain conduct of the
Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing and a
Member of his Political Staff

AFFIDAVIT OF BRIAN DONOVAN
I, BRIAN DONOVAN, of the City of Toronto, in the Municipality of Metropolitan

Toronto, MAKE OATH AND SAY AS FOLLOWS:

1. I am a Barrister and Solicitor of the Bar of Ontario, called to the Bar in February of
1993. I tendered my resignation from the law firm of Cassels, Brock & Blackwell on October

28, 1996, and with effect from November 20, 1996, I ceased to be employed as an associate

lawyer with that firm.

2. On December 9, 1996, at the Request of the Honourable Marilyn Churley, M.P.P. for
Riverdale, I swore an Affidavit in order to record my knowledge of the matters referred to in
her letter of November 25, 1996, addressed to the Honourable G.T. Evans, Q.C., Integrity
Commissioner for the Ontario Provincial Parliament. Attached to this my Affidavit and marked
collectively as Exhibit "A" are copies of Ms. Churley’s letter to Mr. Evans of November 25,

1996, and of my own Affidavit (without exhibits) of December 9, 1996.

3. I have been provided by Ms. Churley with a letter addressed to her from Mr. Evans,
accompanied by Affidavits sworn by Allan F. Leach (the "Leach Affidavit"), by John Angus

Matheson (the "Matheson Affidavit"), by David Spring (the "Spring Affidavit"), and by Hugh
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Donald Guthrie (the "Guthrie Affidavit"). The Leach, Matheson and Spring Affidavits appear
to have been sworn on January 2, 1997, while the Guthrie Affidavit appears to have been sworn
on December 31, 1996. Attached to this my Affidavit and marked collectively as Exhibit "B"
are copies the Leach, Matheson, Spring, and Guthrie Affidavits which I received from Ms.

Churley.

4. At Ms. Churley’s request, I swear this further Affidavit in response to the materials

provided to me by Ms. Churley.

The Leach Affidavit

5 Paragraph 1 of the Leach Affidavit refers to an Affidavit of one M. Brian Donovan. I
am not aware whether there is any such person in existence, but I presume that by M. Brian
Donovan Mr. Leach intended to refer to me, John Brian Donovan, and to my Affidavit of

December 9, 1996, sworn at the request of the Honourable Marilyn Churley, M.P.P. for

Riverdale.

6. I have no reason to doubt the veracity of paragraph 3 of the Leach Affidavit insofar as
Mr. Leach states that Mr. Matheson showed him a copy of my letter of October 4, 1996;
however, I believe that it is extremely likely that if Mr. Leach has discussed the matter with Mr.
Matheson, he will be aware that the intervening circumstances between my letter of September

27, 1996 and the writing of my letter of October 4, 1996, are now the subject of a
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Complaint and Request for Investigation made to the Discipline Department Law Society of
Upper Canada. I am not the complainant in that matter, but Mr. Matheson is onc of the

solicitors against whom the complaint has been made.

e I further believe that, if Mr. Leach has discussed this matter with Mr. Matheson, he will
Kknow that I was instructed to send the letter of October 4, 1996, without the consent or authority
of my clients, by two senior partners of Cassels, Brock & Blackwell, subsequent to Mr.

Matheson’s telephone conversation with Mr. Guthrie of that firm.

8. I understand from paragraphs 5 and 6 of the Leach Affidavit that Mr. Matheson acted
without instructions when he telephoned a senior partner (Guthrie) of Cassels Brock &

Blackwell, but that he (Leach) assumes full responsibility for the actions of Mr. Mathcson.

9. The statements contained in paragraph 7 of the Leach Affidavit are, in my honest
opinion, highly implausible, assuming that they are based on the statements contained in the
Matheson Affidavit. While I shall elaborate on this contention further in my observations in
respect of the Matheson Affidavit, I take as a case in point Mr. Leach’s apparent endorsement
of the reasonableness of Mr. Matheson’s behaviour in contacting receptionists at the law firms
of Goodman and Carr; Osler, Hoskin and Harcourt (a firm with which I have never had any
association) and Donald Guthrie, a person who professes never to have met me, in order to
ascertain my "identity". Since my identity is not a "secret”, it would have been more reasonable

to contact me instead. Nevertheless, I do not question Mr. Leach’s right to decide, in the
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nanner that seems most appropriate to him, upon the reasonabléness of the conduct of members
of his staff. The reasonableness of Mr. Leach’s decisions form part of the subject matter of this

Request for Investigation.

The Matheson Affidavit

10.  From reading the statements contained in paragraph 3 of the Matheson Affidavit, it would
appear that Mr. Matheson has never read my letter to Mr. Lowden of the Sub-panel on
Education Finance in anything more than a cursory manner. In my letter of September 27, 1996
to Mr. Lowden, I did not "threaten (sic) to bring an application for an injunction”, the
respondent to which would be the Sub-panel of Education Finance. In contrast, my letter
requested certain specific information about the constitution, operations and terms of reference
of the Sub-panel, and stated that if such information (which had already been requested by my
clients) was not forthcoming, then I would be seeking instructions to seek injunctive and other
prerogative relief. My letter of September 27, 1996, therefore, was in the nature of a request
for information about the Sub-panel, and stated on its face (as was in fact the case) that no
decision to proceed with an Application in the Ontario Court (General Division) had been taken.
It remains unclear to me why Mr. Matheson, who professes t0 manage the "strategic
communications” of Mr. Leach, chose to construe my letter of September 27, 1996 as a

"threat", rather than simply communicate the information requested.
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11. Having read and reflected upon paragraphs 4 and 5 of the Matheson Affidavit, I remain
at a loss to understand why Mr. Matheson considered "the position expressed in the Donovan
letter” to be one of pending or inevitable litigation. As indicated above, the sole "position”
expressed in my letter of September 27, 1996, was that my clients had requested information
about the Sub-panel, had received no adequate response, and now had requested me to write to
Mr. Lowden on their behalf requesting the same and further information about the Sub-panel.

The letter stated, on its face, that I had received no instructions to commence any form of legal

action at all.

12. From reading paragraph 6 of the Matheson Affidavit, I gather that Mr. Matheson
considered "the factor most relevant in assessing the risk that the matter would go to court” to
have been my "identity and experience”. I cannot imagine how Mr. Matheson could arrive at
such a conclusion; however, in that he apparently considered my "jdentity and experience" to
be "the factor most relevant” in deciding upon a course of action, I briefly state my "identity

and experience"”, as follows:

I was born in Ottawa on September 24, 1959. My early higher education took
place in Winnipeg, Manitoba, where I attended the Jesuit Saint Paul’s College
from 1973 to 1977. From 1977 to 1981, I studied economics and political
science at the University of Manitoba, where I graduated in 1981 with the degree
of B.A. (Hons.), with first class honours. In 1981-1982, I attended the
University of California, Berkeley on a graduate fellowship from the Department
of Political Science. In 1982 I graduated from Berkeley with the degree of M.A.
in political science. In 1982, despite offers to remain at Berkeley to complete my
Ph.D., I accepted a Commonwealth Scholarship to study politics at the University
of Oxford. I attended as a student at Oxford, first as a Commonwealth Scholar,
and subsequently on a Doctoral Fellowship from the Social Sciences and
Humanities Research Council of Canada, and obtained the degrees of M.Phil. in
1984 and D.Phil. in 1987. In 1986, I became a Research Fellow of Nuffield
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College, one of Oxford University’s elite colleges devoted exclusively to study
and research in the social sciences at the post-graduate level. While at Oxford,
I also engaged in undergraduate teaching, and held lectureships at a number of
Oxford Colleges.

In 1988, I returned to Canada and studied law at the University of Toronto from
1988 to 1991. While at law school, I received numerous academic awards,
including prizes for highest standing in the categories of contracts, constitutional
law, criminal procedure, and conflict of laws. Upon graduating from law school
with my L1.B. in 1991, I served in 1991 and 1992 as Law Clerk to the Rt. Hon.
Antonio Lamer, Chief Justice of Canada and of the Supreme Court of Canada.
After the completion of my Clerkship at the Supreme Court of Canada, I
completed the Ontario Bar Admission Course in 1992, and obtained distinctions
in the categories of Public Law and Wills and Estate Planning.

I was called to the Bar of Ontario in February, 1993, and practised civil litigation

at Goodman and Carr from 1992 until 1995. I have prepared and argued

significant reported cases in both public law and commercial law matters; see, for

instance, Re Westpac Banking Corporation and The Duke Group Limited, et al.

(1994), 20 O.R. (3d) 515 (Gen. Div.); Re K. and B. (1995), 25 O.R. (3d) 679

(Prov. Div.)

I am a member of the Canadian Bar Association and of the International Bar

Association, and have served as a Special Consultant to the American Law

Institute in the preparation of its International Statement of the Canadian Law of

Bankruptcy and Insolvency.
Having set out above an abbreviated history of my "identity and experience”, I remain at a loss
to understand how any reasonable person could conclude that this was relevant in any way to
the prospect of litigation, let alone "the factor most relevant in assessing the risk that the matter
would go to court”. Nevertheless, this is Mr. Matheson’s sworn evidence, and also that of Mr.
Leach, as he adopts Mr. Matheson’s explanation of his (Matheson’s) actions without
qualification in paragraph 7 of the Leach Affidavit. I respectfully submit that Mr. Matheson’s

professed belief in the relevance of my "identity and experience” is $0 implausible that it should

not be believed.
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13.  Contrary to Mr. Matheson’s professed belief expressed in paragraph 7 of his affidavit,

I have never had any association with the law firm of Osler, Hoskin & Harcourt.

14.  Having read and reflected upon paragraph 8 of the Matheson Affidavit, I am intrigued
by Mr. Matheson’s professed belief that I am a "highly ideological individual"; indeed, I am not
certain what Mr. Matheson intends to convey by this expression. The most reasonable
interpretation I am able to place upon the characterization of a person as an "ideological
individual” is "an individual with political beliefs and preferences”. If this is the meaning
intended to be expressed by Mr. Matheson then I presume that he (Matheson), and, a forriori,
Mr. Leach, are also "highly ideological individuals". I am uncertain why Mr. Matheson
believes that such individuals are likely to promote litigation on a pro bono basis; however, my
retainer by the Frankland Community School Parent/Staff Association was not on a pro bono
basis, and I received a substantial monetary retainer in respect of the matter. These funds would

have been deposited into the trust account of Cassels Brock & Blackwell but for the intervention

of senior partners of that firm who required me to abandon the case.

15. In reading and reflecting upon paragraphs 9 through 14 of the Matheson Affidavit, and
with no disrespect intended, I am unable to learn of Mr. Matheson’s efforts to ascertain my
"identity" without a sense of the comical. According to Mr. Matheson, his efforts consisted of
telephoning a senior partner of Cassels Brock & Blackwell who professed never to have met me
(Guthrie), telephoning receptionists at Osler, Hoskin & Harcourt (a firm with which I have never

had any association), and telephoning receptionists at Goodman and Carr, a firm where I was



not at that time employed. A far simpler procedure to ascertain my identity would have been
to telephone me at my direct line as indicated on my letter of September 27, 1996, and asking
me whether I was the same Brian Donovan that he had known at law school. I do not regard
this information to be secret, privileged, or politically sensitive, and I would gladly have
disclosed my identity to Mr. Matheson had he asked. Once again, I respectfully submit that Mr.

Matheson’s account of his behaviour is so implausible that it ought not to be believed.

16.  With respect to paragraph 16 of the Matheson Affidavit, my honest belief is that the
contents thereof are utterly implausible and should not be believed. There is a clear and
perceptible difference between Mr. Matheson telephoning me in order to ascertain my "identity",
and formal discussions between me and Crown counsel as to the contents of my letter of
September 27, 1996. In my view, Mr. Matheson is simply trying disingenuously to equate the

former with the latter.

17. I note from paragraph 17 of the Matheson Affidavit that Mr. Matheson acted without the
knowledge or instructions of Mr. Leach; however, the Leach Affidavit expressly states that Mr.
Leach takes full responsibility for Mr. Matheson’s behaviour, and, indeed, considers it to have

been proper and reasonable.
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The Spring Affidavit

18. I have also read and reflected upon the Affidavit of David Spring, and as I have no
reason to doubt the veracity of the statements contained therein, I have little comment thereon.
Nevertheless, I would have been interested to learn of Mr. Spring’s legal and academic
qualifications, and, in particular, whether he considers himself to be an expert in the field of

administrative law and prerogative remedies, such that he can opine on these matters with ease

and accuracy.

19. Inote, furthér, that the requests for information, as opposed to legal opinion, about the

Sub-panel on Education Finance made by my clients through me were never answered by Mr.

Spring.

The Guthrie Affidavit

20. I have also read the Guthrie Affidavit and have now had the opportunity to reflect
thereon. Upon reading paragraph 7 thereof, I can only reiterate my observations contained in
paragraphs 10 and 11 of this my Affidavit, above, in respect of the Matheson Affidavit. I
remain unable to understand why a letter in the nature of a request for information, which stated
on its face that I had received no instructions to commence any form of legal action at all, was
construed by Mr. Guthrie as a "threat” of litigation. Mr. Guthrie states that my letter of

September 27, 1996 was read to him over the telephone; consequently, it would have been
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helpful if Mr. Guthrie had been able to explain how it is that my letter, which stated that I had

not received instructions to commence legal action, constituted a threat of litigation.

21.  With respect to paragraph 8 of the Guthrie Affidavit, I did indeed cause a written conflict
search to be circulated throughout the firm. Indeed, a copy of this written conflict search is
annexed to the Guthrie Affidavit as Exhibit "B" thereto. I note that Mr. Guthrie’s partner, Mr.
John W.R. Day, actually had the courtesy to respond to my conflict inquiry indicating that he
was aware of no conflict, as appears on the face of Exhibit "B" to Mr. Guthrie’s Affidavit. In
fact, I received a further response to my conflict search which indicated that there was no

conflict, by the simple handwritten inscription "none” on the face of the document circulated.

22.  With respect to paragraph 9 of the Guthrie Affidavit, it is correct (to the best of my
knowledge) that the Sub-panel on Education Finance has offices in the same government building
as the Ministry of Education and Training. It would be wrong to assume from this, however,
that the Sub-panel is associated or connected with the Ministry of Education and Training. The
Sub-panel is not an emanation of any Ministry of the Ontario Government; however, it does,
contrary to Mr. Guthrie’s suggestion, appear to have some undefined reporting re#ponsibility to
the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing, by virtue of its apparent involvement with Mr.

Leach and Mr. Matheson.

23.  Consequently, it is unclear why Mr. Guthrie concludes paragraph 10 of his Affidavit by

suggesting that Cassels Brock & Blackwell had "a true ethical conflict as well as a business
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conflict” in acting adverse in interest to the Sub-panel, in that the Sub-panel appears to be
associated with a wholly different Ministry than the Ministry of Education and Training (i.e.
Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing), although it is not an emanation or a department of
any Ministry of the Ontario Government. Perhaps Mr. Guthrie meant to convey that the Cassels
Brock & Blackwell law firm stood to lose significant monetary retainers from the Government
of Ontario if a letter emanating from the firm was embarrassing to the Government (i.e., a
"business conflict”). In any case, I reiterate that Mr. Guthrie’s partner, Mr. Day, took the

courtesy of informing me that he was aware of no conflict.

24. I do not know why none of Mr. Guthrie nor the two senior partners referred to in
paragraph 7 of my Affidavit of December 9, 1996 say that they never saw the conflict search;
evidently other partners of the firm did see the conflict search, and at least two had the courtesy

to respond that they perceived no conflict.

25.  Paragraph 13 of Mr. Guthrie’s Affidavit is misleading in its discussion of opening a client
matter for the file and the assignment of a client file number. This is a bureaucratic procedure
which can take several days to complete. Indeed, when I joined Cassels Brock & Blackwell in
November 1995 I brought with me a major client. A "file number” was not assigned to this
matter, to the best of my recollection, for between one and two weeks, in that there was some
disagreement as to which partner would "take credit” for bringing the file to the firm.
Ultimately, at my insistence, a file number was assigned indicating that I had brought the client

to the firm, which was in fact the case.
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. 1 disagree with the opinion expressed in paragraph 15 of the Guthrie Affidavit. It is not
clear how requests for information about the operations and constitution of the Sub-panel on
Education Finance, a public body, made by a lawyer on behalf of clients, is a "serious” matter.
Evidently Mr. Guthrie considers this to be the case. My letter of September 27, 1996 expressly
stated that I had not received instructions to commence any legal proceedings against "an
emanation of the Government of Ontario”, and I believe that if Mr. Guthrie reads the letter he

will equally conclude that this is the case.

27.  The description of the meeting between me and two senior partners of Cassels Brock &
Blackwell contained in paragraphs 17 and 18 of the Guth;ie Affidavit is inaccurate; however,

given that Mr. Guthrie did not attend at that meeting, I attribute no mendacity to Mr. Guthrie
in this regard. He may have been misled by others. What actually happened at the meeting
between me and the two senior partners is correctly set out in paragraphs 7, 8 and 9 of my
Affidavit of December 9, 1996. The subject matter of this meeting is now the subject of a
Complaint and Request for Investigation directed (not by me) to the Discipline Department of
the Law Society of Upper Canada, and therefore I do not propose to comment in great detail at
this point on what transpired. I will add, however, that one of the senior partners present at the
meeting stated that he would convey Mr. Guthrie’s position to me, and I was told that had Mr.
Guthrie been present, I would have been "lying on the floor bleeding with Mr. Guthrie kicking
me". I am pleased that Mr. Guthrie records my behaviour at the meeting to have been

gentlemanly and polite, as this is the standard of conduct to which I customarily attempt to
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conform. I would suggest that the standard of conduct attributed to Mr. Guthrie by his two

partners falls somewhat short of this.

28.  While the full description of the meeting between me and the two senior partners of
Cassels Brock & Blackwell is currently before the Discipline Department of the Law Society of
Upper Canada, Mr. Guthrie is wrong to suggest that I wrote my letter of October 4, 1996,
voluntarily; in contrast, I did so on instructions from my employers and without the consent or
authority of my clients. I resigned my position as a lawyer at the Cassels Brock & Blackwell

firm as a result of the action I was instructed to take.

SWORN before me at the City of Toronto,

in the Municipality of Metropolitan Toronto

this 10th day of January, 1997.
Brian Donovan

/2/1. (/ﬂW

Commissioner for Taking Affidavits

VENTURA, 8 mmlls:ﬂg ete.,
Munlcipality of Metropolitan Toronto, .
Goodman and Carr, Barristers and Solicitors.
Expires January 19, 199%
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This is Exhibit "A" referred to in the Affidavit
of Brian Donovan sworn before me on this 10th day

of January, 1997.

----------------------------------------------------------------------

MAEGAREI’ VENTURA, 2 Commfssioner,
[h;flolgnémpality of Metropolitan Toranto, fu; o

: man and Carr, Barristers and Solicito
Xpires January 19, 1999, o
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Information

November 25, 1996

Hon. G.T. Evans, Q.C.

Office of the Integrity Commissioner
4th Floor, 101 Bloor St. W.

Toronto, Ontario

OPEN LETTER

Dear Mr. Evans:

I write to ask you to investigate whether the Minister of Municipal Affairs and
Housing, the Hon. Al Leach, has breached the Members’ Integrity Act. While the
Act speaks to the conduct of Members, we must also be aware of the public’s
perception of senior political staff. A Minister’s executive assistant is regularly
assumed to be speaking with the voice of his or her Minister. Indeed, staff are
normally instructed to comport themselves as if this were the case.

In the case in question, the Minister has clearly stated that his executive assistant —
the senior member of the Minister’s political staff — telephoned a law firm that
represented a group of parents who wished to protest the work of a subpanel
operating under the Minister’s mandate. The parents had written a letter stating
they were considering launching legal proceedings against the government.

The Minister is on the record as saying: “The application seemed so frivolous that
my executive assistant called Cassels Brock and said, ‘Are you serious?”” The
Minister went further, implicating himself in this intimidating action, when he
said: “We made an inquiry as to whether this was a serious allegation.” [Hansard,
November 7, 1996] '

Today in the Legislature I raised the matter again during Question Period and the
Minister responded in a similar vein, deeming it appropriate for his staff to have
telephoned and questioned the intent of the lawyer’s clients.

While the Minister seems to wholeheartedly approve of his executive assistant’s
action, it is still unclear whether or not he directed that this action be taken, if others
gave that direction or if the staff member acted on his own. Either way, as I
indicated previously, senior staff are perceived to be acting on behalf of the Minister.

sl
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The result for the parents at Frankland Community School, located in my riding of
Riverdale, was devastating. Their lawyer has indicated he was instructed by his
superiors to drop their case, and he subsequently resigned from the firm. The
parents’ questions remain unanswered. The subpanel which they questioned has

made its report to the Minister so that the opportunity to have questions answered
or to apply for an injunction has passed.

This appears to be an abrogation of the rights of citizens, who should expect to be
able to ask questions of their government and consider legal recourse without
intimidation by political staff. Iask you to undertake an investigation of this event

and determine whether the spirit or intent of the Members’ Integrity act has been
broken. :

Sincerely,

Marilyn Churley
MPP -- Riverdale

E Mail to <ndpmail@ndp.on.ca>
-opseu 593
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IN THE MATTER OF a Request for an
Investigation made to the Office of the Integrity
Commissioner in respect of certain conduct of the
Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing and a
Member of his Political Staff

AFFIDAVIT OF BRIAN DONOVAN
I, BRIAN DONOVAN, of the City of Toronto, in the Municipality of Metropolitan

Toronto, MAKE OATH AND SAY AS FOLLOWS:

1. I am a Barrister and Solicitor of the Bar of Ontario, called to the Bar in February of
1993. I tendered my resignation from the law firm of Cassels, Brock & Blackwell on October
28, 1996, and with effect from November 20, 1996, I ceased to be employed as an associate

lawyer with that firm.

~.

2 I have received from the Honourable Marilyn Churley, M.P.P. for Riverdale, a copy of
her letter of November 25, 1996 addressed to the Honourable G.T. Evans, Q.C., Integrity
Commissioner for the Ontario Provincial Parliament. A copy of Ms. Churley’s letter is annexed
to this my Affidavit as Exhibit "A". Ms. Churley has asked me to swear this Affidavit in order
to record my knowledge of the subject matter in respect of which she has requested an

investigation, for the assistance of the Integrity Commissioner in his inquiries.

3L In September, 1996, I was retained by the Parent Staff Association of Frankland
Community School (the "PSA") to make formal inquiries of the Subpanel on Education Finance

of the Ontario Who Does What Panel, a body chaired by Mr. David Crombie. The PSA was,
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at that time, seriously concerned that a letter by Ms: Colleen D. Morris, one of its-members,

addressed to Mr. Steve Lowden, Chair of the Subpanel on Education Finance, had gone

unanswered. A copy of Ms. Morris’ letter, dated September 20, 1996, is attached to this my

Affidavit as Exhibit "B".

4. Acting on my clients’ instructions, I wrote a letter to Mr. Lowden, dated September 26,

1996, but delivered on September 27, 1996. The purpose of this letter was two-fold. First, I

made certain specific requests for certain specific information about the Subpanel and its

activities, including, but not limited to the following:

(@) Whether the Subpanel had any formal terms of reference, and, if
so, if it proposed to produce these to the public;

(b)  Whether the Subpanel proposed to receive oral deputations from
any of the interests which would potentially be affected by its

recommendations; and

(c) How members of the Subpanel were chosen, whether they were
paid, and what selection process was used to ensure a fair
representation of interested parties in the course of the Subpanel’s

selection.

5. Secondly, I inquired by what legal instrument, if any, the Subpanel had been constituted,

and suggested that my clients were considering an Application for Judicial Review of the

Subpanel’s activities, seeking orders in the nature of certiorari and prohibition, t0 quash the

Subpanel’s constitution and restrain if from reporting if it was improperly legally constituted,

or if it was found to have failed to comply with any standards of procedural fairness which it
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was legally bound to observe. A copy of my letter dated September 26, 1996, addressed to Mr.

Lowden, is annexed to this my Affidavit as Exhibit "C".

6. By September 30, 1996, I had received no response to my letter to Mr. Lowden dated
September 26, 1996. At that time, the PSA had been given to understand that the Subpanel
would report its recommendations by October 5, 1996. Given the very tight time frame
apparently involved, I wrote again to Mr. Lowden on September 30, 1996 again requesting a

response. A copy of my second letter to Mr. Lowden is attached to this my Affidavit as Exhibit

"Dll
.

7. On October 1, 1996, I was summoned to a meeting with two Senior Partners of Cassels,
Brock & Blackwell. In the course of this meeting, I was told that the firm had "received a call
from the Province" in respect of my letter to Mr. Lowden dated September 26, 1996. I was also
told that my letter had been very widely circulated, and that many people were very upset about
it. I was told, further, that the Cassels, Brock & Blackwell law firm had been retained on
various occasions by the Ontario Ministry of Education and Training. I was then instructed to
write a further letter to Mr. Lowden, without the consent of my clients, withdrawing my letter

to Mr. Lowden of September 26, 1996 and stating that Cassels, Brock & Blackwell would not

consider representing the PSA in the matter.

8. In response, I pointed out that I had performed a conflict search within the firm, and that,

in any case, my clients did not intend to seek any legal remedy against the Ministry of Education
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and Training. In contrast, any Application for Judicial Review would have named as
Respondent the Subpanel on Education Finance, which is not an emanation of the Ontario
Ministry of Education and Training, nor, indeed, of any other Ministry of‘ the Ontario
Government. I also pointed out that I had been given a retainer in excess of $2,000.00 in

respect of the matter.

9. The Senior Partners of Cassels Brock & Blackwell with whom I was summoned to meet
did, nevertheless, insist that I cease my representation of the PSA, and instructed me to write
a further letter to Mr. Lowden formally withdrawing my letter of September 26, 1996, and
stating that Cassels Brock & Blackwell would not consider acting for the PSA in the matter.
On the instructions of these Senior Partners of Cassels Brock & Blackwell, I sent this final letter
to Mr. Lowden, a copy of which is attached to this my Affidavit as Exhibit "E". On October

28, 1996, I tendered my resignation from Cassels Brock & Blackwell, in consequence of the

action which I had been instructed to take.

10.  While I did not know this at the relevant time, 1 now believe that the "call from the
Province" referred to by the Senior Partners of Cassels Brock & Blackwell with whom I met on
October 1, 1996 was made by John Matheson, Executive Assistant to Al Leach, Ontario’s
current Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing. Attached to this my Affidavit as Exhibit
"F" is a copy of an excerpt from Ontario Hansard of November 7, 1996, wherein Mr. Leach
admitted in the House that his Executive Assistant had called Cassels Brock & Blackwell in

respect of my letter dated September 26, 1996 to Mr. Lowden. Mr. Leach characterized the
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.matter as "frivolous” and stated that his Executive Assistant had asked Cassels, Brock &

Blackwell "Are You Serious?"

11.  Attached to this my Affidavit and marked collectively as Exhibit "G" are copies of
articles in respect of this matter printed in the Globe & Mail (John Barber - November 8, 1996),
and in the Toronto Star (Peter Small - November 12, 1996), which identify John Matheson as
the Executive Assistant who made the telephone call to Cassels Brock & Blackwell. I have no
knowledge as to whether Mr. Matheson made the telephone call of his own initiative or at the

instigation of Mr. Leach.

12. I do not believe that Mr. Matheson telephoned Cassels Brock & Blackwell in order to
determine whether Cassels Brock & Blackwell were "serious” about the letter, or because the

letter seemed "frivolous", in that:

(@ At no point did Mr. Matheson ever attempt to make contact with me, the author
of the letter; in contrast, he apparently contacted a senior partner of Cassels
Brock & Blackwell who had no knowledge of the matter; and

(b)  The letter itself consisted principally of formal requests for information about the
constitution and operations of a public body, the Subpanel on Education Finance,

and it is not clear how requests made by citizens through a lawyer for information
about a public body can be frivolous.

13. My honest opinion is that the true purpose of Mr. Matheson’s telephone call to Cassels
Brock & Blackwell was to cause Cassels Brock & Blackwell to instruct me to withdraw my legal

representation from the PSA (as it did) in order that the questions posed in my letter dated
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September 26, 1996 would not have to be answered, and the Subpanel on Education Finance
would not be subject to an Application for Judicial Review on any of the proposed grounds set
oﬁt in that letter. I believe that if Mr. Matheson’s true purpose in telephoning (;assels Brock
& Blackwell had been as stated by Mr. Leach in the House, then Mr. Matheson would have

contacted me, the author of the letter, and not my employers.

14.  Itis my honest opinion that Mr. Matheson’s telephone call to Cassels Brock & Blackwell,
whether instigated by Mr. Leach or made of his own volition, constituted a discreditable

interference in the relationship between me and my clients, made for political purposes.

15. As a result of Mr. Matheson’s actions, my clients have been permanently and
irremediably prejudiced in whatever cause of action they may have had in the nature of
injunction or prohibition against the Subpanel on Education Finance, in that the Subpanel has
already reported its findings and recommendations. Moreover, I am advised by the PSA, and

I do verily believe, that none of the questions posed in my letter dated September 26, 1996, has

been answered.

16. I swear this Affidavit at the request of the Honourable Marilyn Churley, M.P.P. for

Riverdale, for the assistance of the Integrity Commissioner in his inquiries into this matter, and



for no other or improper purpose. I am, further, prepared to cooperate with the Integrity

Commissioner in his inquiries in any way in which I may properly do so.

SWORN before me at the City of Toronto,

in the Municipality of Metropolitan Toronto

this’rvday of December, 1996 \ RP) ‘QE/VVM—-\

¢  Brian Donovan

/M 4 (/j A &

Commissioner for Taking Affidavits

MARGARET VENTURA, & Commissioner, .,
Municipality of Metropalitan Toronto, for
Goodman and Carr, Barristers and Sollcitors,
Explres January 19, 1999,

brian.aff



This is Exhibit "B" referred to in the Affidavit

of Brian Donovan sworn before me on this 10th day

of January, 1997.

---------------------------------------------------------------------

commiss‘-ﬂﬂe ' &G

\ENTURA, 3 fof
W‘RGARET of Mewopoiteh A ¢sg\\c.\mﬁ-
Mumcman“i 4 carf, garris rs an
Goodma 199%

[—_xpues ﬂf‘i L



[ — L

] bl d

O |

UL U W [ VU |

IN THE MATTER OF a request for an
Investigation made to the Office of the Integrity
Commissioner in respect of certain conduct of the
Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing and a
Member of his Political Staff

AFFIDAVIT OF ALLAN F. LEACH

|, ALLAN F. LEACH, of theCity of Toronto in the Municipality of Metropolitan

Toronto, make oath and do solemnly swear as follows:

| am the Member of Provincial Parliament for St. George - St. David, and Minister
of Municipal Affairs and Housing. As such, | have knowledge of the matters

hereinafter deposed to:

1. On or about the morning of September 27th, 1996 | was informed by

telephone call from John Matheson, my executive assistant, that a letter fro

Brian Donovan dated September 26th, 1996 had been received at the@
informed me that the Ietter‘threatened legal action on behalf of the Parent Staff l,‘,L),
Association of the Franklarid Community School (the "Association”), against the

Who Does What Sub-Panel on Education Finance. He further informed me that

David Spring, Senior Counsel to the Ministry, was evaluating the letter.

2. On September 30, 1996, | was informed by John Matheson that while the
threat of litigation was on-going, it was the preliminary opinion of Mr. Spring that

the substance of the claim was without legal merit.

3. On or about October 4, 1996, | was informed by John Matheson that Mr.
Donovan had withdrawn his letter. | was provided with a copy of a letter from Mr.
Donovan dated October 4, 1996, which stated that he had undertaken his

representation of the Frankland Parents Association without the prior consent of
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his employer, Cassels, Brock and Blackwell.

4, | am advised by Mr. Matheson and do verily believe that in the course of
formulating his assessment of the risk of litigation in this matter, he made a
telephone call to Mr. Don Guthrie at Cassels, Brock and Blackwell, for the purpose
of finding out the seriousness of the claim.
“.\7

. y ¢ 7.
B. At no time did | ever contact anyone at Cassels, Brock and Blackwell in Qf\"X\J

connection with this matter. Furthermore, at no time did | ever instruct Mr. W Ge*

Matheson or any member of my staff to contact that firm.

6. | believe that as Minister | am responsible for the actions of my staff.

7 | have investigated this matter and am satisfied that the call was made for \Q; .7

the purpose of evaluating the seriousness of the claim, and not for any improper
purpose. | am advised by Mr. Matheson and do verily believe that further
particulars of his involvement in this matter are stated in his affidavit, sworn

January 2, 1997 and attached hereto as Exhibit "A".

SWORN before me at the City of Toronto, )
)
in the Municipality of Metropolitan Toronto )
)
)

this ., day of January, 1997 Allan/F.¥each

“Tommissione( for Taking Affidavits

%

or
L8y
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IN THE MATTER OF a request for an
Investigation made to the Office of the
Integrity Commissioner in respect of certain
conduct of the Minister of Municipal Affairs
and Housing and a Member of his Political
Staff

AFFIDAVIT OF JOHN MATHESON

(Exhibit "A" to the Affidavit of Allan F. Leach)

1, JOHN ANGUS MATHESON, of the City of Etobicoke in the Municipality of
Metropolitan Toronto, make oath and do solemnly swear as follows:

1. At all times relevant to these proceedings, | was the executive assistant to
the Honourable Allan F. Leach, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing. | am
also a barrister and solicitor called in 1993 to the Bar of Ontario. As such, | have

knowledge of the matters hereinafter deposed to:

2 As executive assistant to the Minister, | am responsible for the planning and
operations of his office. In particular, | manage his strategic communications and

am responsible for the operation of his legislative agenda. Although | am a lawyer
by profession, | do not act as legal counsel to the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and

Housing.

3 On or about September 27th, 1996, | received a copy of a letter dated
September 26th, 1996, and written by J. Brian Donovan. A copy of this letter is
attached hereto as Exhibit "A”". In that letter, Mr. Donovan threatened to bring an
application for an injunction to "restrain further activity and deliberation” by the
sub-panel on education finance of the Who Does What commission. Given the

&

tight operational time frames under which the sub-panel was operating, | regarded 31"
N0

the threatened injunction as a potential communications and operational challenge.

Ny
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4. Later that day, | attended a meeting with@ David Spring, Senior
Counsel to -the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing at which time that letter
was discussed. Mr. Spring informed me that in his preliminary opinion, the basis
of the potential legal action against the Education Sub-Panel was ill-founded and
without legal merit.

51.-"77
9
B After the meeting | remained concerned that notwithstanding what | be!ieved/K 0! (

Y

}

to be a lack of legal merit with respect to the position expressed in the Donovan ‘_’m’
letter, the process of litigation itself might lead to an interruption in the on-going \ ‘kH

: W
work of the sub-panel pending a final determination of the matter. €c,\c d

6. | believed that in addition to the legal merits, the factor most relevant in

assessing the risk that the matter would go to court was the and

experienceyof their legal counsel.

7. With respect to the identity and experience of counsel, | believed that | knew

\H__q(ﬂﬁf‘/

the author of the letter. There was a Brian Donovan known to me who had been a
classmate at the University of Toronto Law School. | was uncertain as to whether

this was the same person, however, because it was then my understanding that \ ‘ w,r

Donovan had recently left the firm of Goodman & Carr to practise at Osler, Hoskin Fﬁf““:’
& Harcourt. &o H
8. In my view the identity of Mr. Donovan was relevant to the assessment of

the case in that based on my personal knowledge of him, | honestly believed

Donovan to be a highlyideological individual'who would be very interested in the % 3
~ 1Y

case for ideological reasons. If if were him, | believed that he would be likely to

advance the case even on a pro jbono basis.
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~ activities of the Who Does What panel and that | was trying to find out more about /rﬂl
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8. In the hope of obtaining more information that would indicate whether or not .
the threat of litigation was serious, | called Don Guthrie, a partner at Cassels Brock -
who was known to me as a colleague. | contacted him for the purpose of

confirming whether Mr. Donovan was the same Donovan known to me,
notwithstanding that my{ast information was that he was still employed at Osler,

Hoskin and Harcourt.

10. With respect to the allegations contained in paragraphs 12 and 13 of the
Affidavit of J. Brian Donovan, sworn December 9, 1996, | deny that at any time |
impliedly suggested to Mr. Guthrie that Cassels, Brock should discontinue its
representation of the Association. In fact when | called | inquired into Mr. 7(. .:
*~
Donovan’s seniority.at the firm. Mr. Guthrie confirmed that Mr. Donovan had w}
recently joined the firm. | then asked if he was about 38 years old, with grey hair N \H)
and beard. Mr. Guthrie informed me that he had never met Mr Donovan and did f

not know his appearance. | ) w’l;g‘ ),
11.  Mr. Guthrie then asked why | was interested in Mr. Donovan. | told him that g_‘ ,‘,} '

Mr. Donovan had threatened to bring an application for an injunction relating to the m‘?f{'_

l‘-

him, and whether the threat was meant seriously, as it appeared to be frivolous -

based on its absence of legal merit.

12.  Mr. Guthrie told me that he was. not aware of the threatened injunction. |
read a copy of Mr. Donovan’s letter to Mr. Guthrie. Mr Gutherie expressed his

discomfort with the tone of the letter.
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13. After my call to Mr. Guthrie, | made two further calls to receptionists at

Goodman and Carr and Osler Hoskin and Harcourt, who confirmed that no one els 2\

by the name of Brian Donovan worked at those firms. Based on those calls, and V]

my call to Mr. Guthrie, | concluded that the author of the letter and the person l )c,

known to me were one and the same. ' ' “},«(\"“ "
4

14. Accordingly, on my assumption based on all of the above that the author of

the letter and the Brian Donovan known to me from law school days were one and

the same, | planned the next week around the liklihood that an application to the

Courts would be made, which might present an impediment to the timliness of the

sub-committee’s presentation of its recommendations.

15. On or about October 5, 1996 | received a copy of a letter dated October 4,
1996 (Exhibit "B" to this Affidavit), wherein Mr. Donovan revoked his letter of
September 26, 1996.

3
16. With respect to the allegation contained in paragraph 13 of the Donovan ’;ﬁ J \7>
\
Affidavit, | did not contact Mr. Donovan directly because | am employed by the Y Q\"‘;
Vv N

Minister in a political and not a legal function. Any formal communication with Mr. wf

o
Donovan in respect of the latter’s letter of September 26 was to be undertaken by VJ\A \
our senior counsel, Mr. David Spring. As has already been explained herein, my & j

LA

call to Mr. Guthrie was to find out information about the identity and experience of

Mr. Donovan.

17. My decision to call Mr. Gutherie was made on my own and without any

knowledge of the Hon. Allan F. Leach, M.P.P.

18. | swear this affidavit for the assistance of the Integrity Commissioner in his

inquiries into this matter, and for no other or improper purpose.
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SWORN before me at the City of Toronto,

in the Municipality of Metropolitan Toronto )/'ﬂ, ?/[
)
this ° 2: day of January 1997 ) John A. Mathesén

—~40 WAL

Commissioner fgf Taking Affidavits
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EXHIBIT "A"
WRITER'S DIRECT INE: (416) 869-5452

OUR FLE NO:

VIA DELIVERY AND FAX
September 26, 1996

Mr. Steve Lowden

Chair
Sub-Panel on Education Finance

Ministry of Education & Training
Mowat Block

24th Floor

900 Bay Street

Toronto, ON M7A 1L2

Dear Mr. Lowden:
Re: Sub-panel on Education Finance

We have been consulted by the Parent/Staff Association of Frankland Community
School (the “PSA”") in respect of the appointment and activities of your sub-panel on
education finance. Our dlient, the PSA, has repeatedly attempted to obtain pertinent
information from your sub-panel which ought reasonably to be accessible to such a
concerned organization under the circumstances. Indeed, the terms of refe.ence of
your sub-panel have been requested, which request has been refused.

Accordingly, we have advised our client that the activities and deliberations of your
sub-panel are subject to judicial challenge on the basis of basic administrative law
principles of administrative reasonableness and procedural fairness.

We understand that your sub-panel proposes to report its findings and conclusions
on or about October 5, 1996, and that such report will have an impact upon the ~
interests of many parties, including our client. Consequently, unless your sub-panul-
becomes immediately more forthcoming, we shall be seeking instructions to
commence immediate judicial proceedings to cestrain further activity and
deliberation by your sub-panel by way of injunction. and certiorari to quash the sub-
pancl's constitution. with prohibition in aid to preclude the delivery of your report
bv the proposed October 5, 1996 deadline.

Without purporting to be exhaustive. our clients legiimate concerns include the

toilowing:
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As indicated above, the terms of reference for your sub-panel have been
requested, and this request has been refused. In contrast, we have most
recently been provided (as of September 25, 1996) with a set of draft terms of
reference. Are we to understand that the sub-panel on education finance has
been proceeding with its investigations and deliberations to date in the
absence of final terms of reference? If so, the sub-panel's activities have
clearly been carried on without proper authority.

In this connection, we require immediate answers to the following questions:

(a) Do final terms of reference for the sub-panel on education finance
exist?

()  If such terms of reference do exist, when were they adopted?

(¢) If such terms of reference do exist, kindly produce a copy of same
immediately.

By letter dated September 20, 1996, Ms. Colleen D. Morris on behalf of the
PSA, requested that you notify the PSA as to the dates on which the sub-panel
will be receiving deputations. Ms. Morris has received no reply. Please
indicate at once when you will be receiving oral deputations from parties
whose interests will obviously be affected by any recommendations which

your sub-panel may make, including our client.

We are distressed to have been informed that the activities of the sub-panel
have been conducted under what can only be described as an aura of secrecy.
Our understanding is that information in respect of the location of the sub-
panel's proceedings has been denied when requested, even when such
requests have been for the purpose of delivering relevant materials to the
sub-panel. Such a practice is clearly unacceptable, and gives rise to an
interence of bad faith.

The legal authority for the appointment of the sub-panel (if any) appears ta.
have been kept mysterious. In this connection, we require immediate
answers to the following questions: )

(a)  How were the members of the sub-panel appointed?

(b)  Are the sub-panel members paid for their work. and, if so. on what
basis?

(c;  What was the selection process utilized to ensure a fair representation
ot :nterested parties 1n the course of the selection of the sub-ranel.
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(d) From what pool were the members of the sub-panel selected, and was
the process of selection made public? -

(e) By means of what legal instrument (if any) were the members of the
sub-panel appointed?

5.  The composition of the sub-panel on education finance is seriously defective,
in that it fails to represent parties whose interests will clearly be affected by
any report or recommendations made by the sub-panel. Most blatantly, the
Metropolitan Toronto School Board is not represented. Equally, the Ontario
Secondary School Teachers Federation is unrepresented. We are advised that
knowledgeable members of these and other educational organizations are
willing and prepared to serve on the sub-panel. None of them have been
selected. Why not?

Under the circumstances, we have advised our client that any report or
recommendations made by your sub-panel as presently constituted will be
fundamentally defective, in that it is not clear that the sub-panel was ever properly
constituted, and legitimate apprehensions of bias, and procedural and
administrative unfairness, arise. [ now write, further to Ms. Morris' letter of
September 20, 1996 to request that your sub-panel immediately cease its activities
and deliberations, pending resolution of the very serious concerns outlined above. 1
trust we shall receive your early and co-operative response, and that it will not be
necessary to obtain the assistance of the courts to restrain the sub-panel’s current
activities in order to ensure a fair and equitable result.

Please govern yourself accordingly.

Yours very truly,
CASSELS BROCK & BLACKWEL

N % N

Per: J. Brian Donovan

JBD/z .
c M. Gisele Lalonde

Ms. Enid Slack

Mr. James Downey

Ms. Linda Rydhoim

Mr John Snubelen (Delivered)

Ms. Cav Youny,

My Cuolleen Morns

My Marna Bahadur

A lane Archibald

“r Chris Malkiewich fay 7317079
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October 4, 1996

Mr. Steve Lowden

Chair
Sub-Panel on Education Finance

Ministry of Education & Training
Mowat Block

24th Floor

900 Bay Street

Toronto, ON M7A 1L2

Dear Mr. Lowden:
Re: Subpanel on Education Flnance

My letter to you and other members of the Subpanel on Education Finance of
September 27, while sent on the firm letterhead of Cassels Brock & Blackwell, was
unauthorized by tha firm. Further, | have been advised that had the firm been aware of
the letter, it would not have considered acting in this matter at all. Consequently. | am

writing formally to withdraw my September 27, 1996 letter.

In any case, | can advise you that | do not believe that the PSA intends to proceed with
an appiication for judicial review; however, if it does decide to proceed, Cassels Brock
& Blackwell will not consider zcting in the matter on their behalf.

Yours very truly,
CASSELS BROCK & BLACKWELL

g

Brian Donovean
BD/jvms

In'armatcra AN LEUCh CASSELS » P05, Q7 - DOUGLAS + NORIEGA Toronto * Mcrtreai « Vancouver Maxce 27V



IN THE MATTER OF a request for an
Investigation made to the Office of the Integrity
Commissioner in respect of certain conduct of
the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing
and a Member of his Political Staff

AFFIDAVIT OF DAVID SPRING

|, David Spring, of the City of Toronto in the Municipality of Metropolitan Toronto,
MAKE OATH AND SAY AS FOLLOWS:

1. | am the Senior Counsel in the Municipal and Planning Law section of the Legal
Services Branch of the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing.

2. The Province of Ontario, as represented by the Minister of Municipal Affairs and
Housing, required assistance from advisors and consultants in reviewing the service
delivery responsibilities of the municipal and provincial governments. This advisory
group became known as the "Who Ddes What Panel". The participation of the advisors
was confirmed by letter and the consultants were retained by the Minister of Municipal

Affairs and Housing in his capacity as a Minister of the Crown.

3 On Friday, September 27, | was given a copy of a letter from Brian Donovan of
the firm of Cassels Brock and Blackwell which | immediately circulated to my
supervisor and to senior officials within the Ministry. A copy of this letter is attached
hereto as Exhibit "A".

4, After a discussion with Ministry officials in which | offered a preliminary opinion
to the effect that the legal position espoused in the letter was without merit, | was

instructed to prepare a reply for my signature.
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5. At the beginning of the following week, | prepared such a rely, after researching
the applicable law. My reply answered a number of the questions raised by Mr.
Donovan in his letter of September 26, and addressed the legal issues raised by him

in that letter.

6. On October 1 or 2, | telephoned Mr. Donovan, the author of the letter referred
to above, and advised him that | would be responding to this letter in writing. He
replied that the would await my response.

7. On Friday, October 4, before sending my reply to Mr. Donovan, | received from
a Ministry official, a copy of letter from Mr. Donovan. A copy of that letter is attached
hereto as Exhibit "B".

8. As a consequence of receiving the copy of the letter referred to in paragraph 7
above, | did not send the response referred to above, and took no further action in the

matter.

S. | make this Affidavit for the purpose of assisting the Integrity Commission in this

matter, and for no other purpose.

SWORN before me at the City of Toronto,
in the Municipality of Metropolitan Toronto Q:; ,()/(

David Sprln

this ) g day of January, 1997

(/S Jdenc i

Cgfpmissioner for Taking Affidavits
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3COTIA FLAZA. SUITE 2100. 20 XING STREST \WEST, TORONTO. CANADA MSH 2CC
TELSDHCME (416 863-3300 =Ax .416) 360-8877

EXHIBIT "A°"
WRITER'S DIRECTUNE: (416) 869-5452

OUR FLE NO:

VIA DELIVERY AND FAX
September 26, 1996

Mr. Steve Lowden

Chair

Sub-Panel on Education Finance
Minisiry of Education & Training
Mowat Block

24th Floor

900 Bay Street

Toronto, ON M7A b

| Dear Mr. Lowden:

“e:  Sub-panel on Education Finance

We have been consulted by the Parent/Staff Association of Frankland Community
School (the "PSA") in respect of the appointment and activities of your sub-panel on
education finance. Our dient, the PSA, has repeatedly attempted to obtain pertinent
information from your sub-panel which ought reasonably to be accessible to sucha
concerned organization under the circumstances. Indeed, the terms of refe.ence of
your sub-panel have been requested, which request has been refused.

Accordingly, we have advised our client that the activities and deliberations of your
sub-panel are subject to judicial challenge on the basis of basic administrative law
principles of administrative reasonableness and procedural fairness.

We understand that your sub-panel proposes to report its findings and conclusions

on or about October 5, 1996, and that such report will have an impact upon the )
interests of many parties, including our Jdient. Consequently, unless your sub-panul-
becomes immediately more forthcoming, we shall be seekinyg instructions to
commence immediate judicial proceedings to cestrain further activity and
deliberation by your sub-panel by way of injunction. and certiorart to quash the sub-
panel’s constitution. with prolubition in aid to preclude the delivery of vour report

bv the prnpused October 3, 1996 deadline.

Without purporting to be exhaustive. vur clieats lesitimate concerns include the

toilow e
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As indicated above, the terms of reference for your sub-panel have been
requested, and this request has been refused. In contrast, we have most
recently been provided (as of September 25, 1996) with a set of draft terms of
reference. Are we to understand that the sub-panel on education finance has
been proceeding with its investigations and deliberations to date in the
absence of final terms of reference? If so, the sub-panel's activities have
clearly been carried on without proper authority.

In this connection, we require immediate answers to the following questions:

(a) Do final terms of reference for the sub-panel on education finance
exist?

()  If such terms of reference do exist, when were they adopted?

()  If such terms of reference do exist, kindly produce a copy of same
immediately.

By letter dated September 20, 1996, Ms. Colleen D. Morris on behalf of the
PSA, requested that you notify the PSA as to the dates on which the sub-panel
will be receiving deputations. Ms. Morris has received no reply. Please
indicate at once when you will be receiving oral deputations from parties
whose interests will obviously be affected by any recommendations which
your sub-panel may make, including our dlient.

We are distressed to have been informed that the activities of the sub-panel
have been conducted under what can only be described as an aura of secrecy.
Our understanding is that information in respect of the location of the sub-
panel's proceedings has been denied when requested, even when such
requests have been for the purpose of .delivering relevant materials to the
sub-panel. Such a practice is clearly unacceptable, and gives rise to an
interence of bad faith. :

The legal authority for the appointment of the sub-panel (if any) appears ta.
have been kept mysterious. In this connection, we require immediate
answers to the following questions: '

(a)  How were the members of the sub-panel appointed?

(b)  Are the sub-panel members paid for their work. and, if so. on what
basis?

(c; What was the selection process utilized to ensure a fair recresentation
or :nterested parfies in the course ot the selection of the seb-canel.
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(d) From what pool were the members of the sub-panel selected, and was
the process of selection made public? .

(¢) By means of what legal instrument (if any) were the members of the
sub-panel appointed? :

5. The composition of the sub-panel on education finance is seriously defective,
in that it fails to represent parties whose interests will clearly be affected by
any report or recommendations made by the sub-panel. Most blatantly, the
Metropolitan Toronto School Board is not represented. Equally, the Ontario
Secondary School Teachers Federation is unrepresented. We are advised that
knowledgeable members of these and other educational organizations are
willing and prepared to serve on the sub-panel. None of them have been

selected. Why not?

Under the circumstances, we have advised our dlient that any report or
recommendations made by your sub-panel as presently constituted will be
fundamentally defective, in that it is not clear that the sub-panel was ever properly
constituted, and legitimate apprehensions of bias, and procedural and
administrative unfairness, arise. [ now write, further to Ms. Morris’ letter of
September 20, 1996 to request that your sub-pane! immediately cease its activities
and deliberations, pending resolution of the very serious concerns outlined above. I
trust we shall receive your early and co-operative response, and that it will not be
necessary to obtain the assistance of the courts to restrain the sub-panel's current
activities in order to ensure a fair and equitable result.

Please govern yourself accordingly.

Yours very truly,
CASSELS BROCK & BLACKWEL

M % N

Per: J. Brian Donovan
JBD/&z a3
g = Ms. Gisele Lalonde ]
My, Enid Slack
Mr. James Downey
Ms. Linda Rydholm
M. Juhn Snubelen (Delivered)
Ms. Cav Yiuny :
My Culleen Morny
My Mara Bahadur
M lane Archibald
e Chees Malkieswach fay 73170030
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Cassels Brock & Blackwell

BAARRISTERS & SOLICITORS » TRADE MARK AQENTS

_ SCOTIAPLAZA. SUITE 2100, 40KING STREETWEST, TORONTO, CANADA M5H3C2
TELEPHONE (416) 869-5300 FAX (416) 360-8877

EXHIBIT "B* WRITER'S DIRECT LINE  (416) 869-5452
OUR FILE NO:

October 4, 1996

Mr. Steve Lowden

Chair
Sub-Panel on Education Finance

Ministry of Education & Training
Mowat Block

24th Floor

900 Bay Street

Toronto, ON M7A 112

Dear Mr. Lowden:
Re: Subpanel on Education Finance

My letter to you and other members of the Subpanel on Education Finance of
Saeptember 27, while sent on the firm letterhead of Cassels Brock & Blackwell, was
unauthorized by tha firm. Further, | have been advised that had the firm been aware of
the letter. it would not have considered acting in this matter at all. Consequently. | am
writing formally to withdraw my Seplember 27, 1896 letter.

In any case, | can advise you that | do not believe that the PSA intends t0 proceed with

an application for judicial review; however, if it does decide to proceed, Cassels Brock
& Blackwall will not consider &cting in the matler on their behalf.

Yours very truly,
CASSELS BROCK & BLACKWELL

% A% W :

Brian Donovan
BD/jvms

g0 s OREEELE @I, 2. J0OUELSS NCQIEGS Toronte « Mertears Variouvar s Maxes T,



IN THE MATTER OF a Request for an
Investigation made to the Office of the Integrity
Commissioner in respect of certain conduct of
the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing
and a Member of his Political Staff

AFFIDAVIT OF HUGH DONALD GUTHRIE

|. HUGH DONALD GUTHRIE, of the City of Toronto, in the Municipality of
Metropolitan Toronto, MAKE OATH AND SAY AS FOLLOWS:

1. | am a barrister and solicitor duly qualified to practice law in the Province of
Ontario and was called to the Bar of Ontario in 1954. From the time of my call to the
Bar until the present, | have practiced law with the firm of Cassels Brock & Blackwell
(the “firm”) and its predecessor firms. | am the immediate past Chairman of the firm,

and for some years have been and now am the Chairmanr of its Ethics and

Professional Standards Commitiee.

2. | have read the Affidavit of Brian Donovan swom the Sth day of December, 1996
and the exhibits thereto annexed, and | make this Affidavit in response thereto, in order
to provide relevant facts not included in Mr. Donovan’s Affidavit and to correct a

number of serious inaccuracies therein.

3. On Friday, the 27th day of September, 1996 | received a telephone call from
John Matheson, Executive Assistant to the Hon. Al Leach, Minister of Municipal Affairs
and Housing in the Government of Ontario, referred to in paragraph 10 of Mr.

Donovan'’s Affidavit.

4, Mr. Matheson asked me at the outset of our telephone conversation if there was
a Brian Donovan currently associated with the firm as a practicing lawyer. | told him

that | could not immediately recall the name or say for sure whether Mr. Donovan
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practiced with us. The firm comprises some 130 lawyers and | must admit that | am not
confident that | know at all times the names of all who have recently been employed by

the firm. | told Mr. Matheson that | would have to confirm Mr. Donovan’s status and

asked him why he was inquiring.

5. Mr. Matheson then asked me if | was aware of a letter addressed to a Mr. Steve
Lowden dated September 26, 1996 (the “Letter”), written on the stationery of the firm
and apparently signed on its behalf by J. Brian Donovan, a copy of 'which Mr.
Matheson had received on the moming of the day of his call to me, 27th September. |
told him that | was not aware of such a letter and as a result of inquiries which | made

subsequently, it appeared that until my conversation with Mr. Matheson, no partner in

the firm was aware of the existence of the Letter.

6. The Letter in question is referred to in paragraphs 4 and 5 of Mr. Donovan’s

said Affidavit and for greater certainty, a copy thereof is hereto annexed and marked

as Exhibit “A” to this Affidavit.

7. At no time during the said telephone conversation or at any other time did Mr.
Matheson suggest to me that the firm should withdraw or consi-der withdrawing the
Letter or that it should instruct Mr. Donovan to do so or that it should cease to act for
the Parent/Staff Association of Frankland Community School (“Frankland”), nor did Mr.
Matheson interfere or attempt to interfere with any solicitor-client relationship between
the firm and Frankland, nor suggest or lead me to think that his call to me was made for
any political or ulterior motive or purpose. | understood Mr. Matheson’s inquiry to be
solely directed to ascertaining whether the Letter represented the outcome of a serious
retainer and was authorized by the firm or whether it may have been written more from
Mr. Donovan's private and personal standpoint. | told Mr. Matheson that | would look

into the matter, as it concerned me to learn from him on the telephone that the Letter

Con |
oo
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threatened “the assistance of the courts to restrain the sub-panel’s current activities”
before October 5, 1996 uniess the sub-panel should “immediately cease its activities

and deliberations ...".

8. | have ascertained that Mr. Donovan became an associate lawyer in the firm on
November 1, 1995. As such he would or should have been aware of the policies,
procedures and practices of the firm as to the acceptance of retainers.from prospective
clients and the opening of files for new client matters. Except as otherwise expressly
indicated in this Affidavit, | use the term “retainer’ herein to mean an authority and
instruction to a lawyer from a client or prospective client to act on his, her or its behalf
in advising on or conducting a matter of a legal nature. The policies and procedures of
the firm require a three-step process in the acceptance of a retainer from a prospective
new client where the matter involves a possible controversy with or action against
another party. Firstly, the lawyer concerned must conduct a search for possible
conflicts of interest by circulating or causing to be circulated an inquiry by written
memorandum or electronic mail message to all other lawyers in the firm and to the
central records department of the firm, to inquire whether the proposed retainer could
result in a possible conflict of interest with an existing client of the firm. The
procedures further require that an adequate time for response be given, so that the
many lawyers who must read the inquiry will have sufficient time to reply, given their
other commitments and absences from the office. If after the appropriate lapse of time,
there is no adverse response to the conflict inquiry, a partner may accept a retainer
from the prospective client, preferably in writing if the matter is of a serious or difficult
nature but on occasion, where appropriate, the retainer may be oral at the outset. In
the case of an associate, the procedures apply in the same manner but the associate

willseek the approval or guidance of his supervising partner before

accepting an important retainer. Thirdly, the lawyer then opens a file for the matter,

v
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assign a matter number to the particular file, as a sub-set of the client number. 5, % ..

a5 bo why q«"’fa jr
9. Having consulted the records of the firm produced to me by the firm’s Chief

which involves instructions to the central records department to enter the name of the \'\(ww7

new client in the firm records, to assign a client number, to prepare a file cover and to

Admin_istrative Officer, | can positively state, with reference to compliance with these
policies and procedures, as follows. Firstly, with regard to a conflict search, Mr.
Donovan evidently intended to cause to be circulated to secretaries within the firm the
electronic message, a transcribed copy of which is annexed hereto and marked as

Exhibit “B” to this Affidavit. It is to be noted that the intended opposite party in a

proposed action “to seek an immediate interim injunction and other ancillary Mhﬁt:;

prerogative relief’ was stated to be “the Ontario Subpanel on Education Finance™ The | ».°

NE of g
Letter, Exhibit “A” hereto, identifies that sub-panelas addressed at)and apparently :7:)‘5;

associated or connected with the Ministry of Education & Training of Ontario, and the
practice of the firm would call for a listing, in the conflict inquiry, of parent, superior,
associated, related and subsidiary bodies of the opposite party, so that responding

lawyers could be made fully aware of the ramifications of the proposed retainer.

10. It is further to be noted that the conilict inquiry was issued on “27/9/96" at “9:56

a.m.” (i.e. on the day following the date of the Letter). Neither | nor the “Senior }
/)

Partners” of the firm referred to in paragraph 7 of Mr. Donovan’s affidavit, nor many of ) ("
the lawyers in the firm of whom | have made inquiries ever saw the conflict message. ¢, X
There is no record of the inquiry having been sent to the central records department of : .1
the firm. The firm was acting at the time and has for many years acted for several j )f:.\\\.
Ministries of the Government of Ontario, including the Ministry of Education & Training,
and had the conflict inquiry been in proper form and issued in time for appropriate
response in advance of the issuance of the Letter, | have no doubt that | and several

partners in the firm would have responded adversely to the acceptance of the
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pfopo’sed retainer, or would at least have initiated inquiries, because the firm had
clearly, at the time, a true ethical conflict as well as a business conflict in acting
contrary to the interests of the Ministry of Education & Training or any panel or sub-

panel associated with that Ministry.

11.  Secondly, there is no record to be found in the file data or docket entries of Mr.
Donovan for the whole of the relevant period of any written retainer from Frankland,
although there are docket entries on September 25 and 26 which indicate extensive
discussions with one C. Morris conceming “potential injunction application” and “draft
letter to S. Lowden”. Presumably the C. Morris was the author of the letter, Exhibit “B”
to Mr. Donovan’s Affidavit. There is a further docket entry on September 26 of
“meeting at Frankland Public School to discuss possible courses of action” and a final
entry on September 30: ‘“telephone call with C. Morris re possible retainer and

evening meeting” (emphasis added).

12.  In my belief and respectful submission, the statement in paragraph 8 of Mr.
Donovan's Affidavit that he “had performed a conflict search within the firm” is
misleading, in that the search was not made in accordance with the procedures of the
firm or on a timely basis that would have allowed response before the issuance of the
Letter. Such procedures would normally require that no action akin to the Letter be

taken until October 1 at the earliest.

13.  Thirdly, the records of the firm disclose that at no time did Mr. .Donovan open a
client file for the matter in question or ask that a client matter number be assigned to
Frankland, for this or any other matter. The records of the firm further show that if Mr.
Donovan “had been given a retainer in excess of $2,000.00 in respect of the matter”,
as alleged in paragraph 8 of his Affidavit, no such monetary retainer was ever received

or recorded by or made known to the firm.

)
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14. It is further to be noted that the docket entries referred to in paragraph 11 hereof .

were entered by Mr. Donovan on an internal ledger, kept for office administration
purposes, entitled “Business Development - Donovan, J.B.” to which was assigned a
number in an internal series prefixed with the numbers “99” to indicate (as Mr.
Donovan would well know) that the activities or services reflected by the entries were

considered to be “non-billable” and not pursuant to an authorized retainer.

15.  One of the said Senior Partners was Mr. Donovan's supervising partner. It is my"}
belief that Mr. Donovan would or should have known that before undertaking a matter
of the seriousness alleged in the Letter and before considering or threatening
injunction proceedings against an emanation of the Govemment of Ontario, he should

have discussed the matter with his supervising partner. | am informed and verily

believe that no such discussion took place and that the supervising partner was

completely unaware of the threatening Letter until informed of it by me as hereinafter | ,: P

described.

16. On Monday, the 30th day of September, 1996, | consulted with the said two
Senior Partners and informed them of the substance of my telephone conversation
witﬁ Mr. Matheson on the previous Friday. The statements in the succeeding
paragraphs of this Affidavit are made upon information and _belief, from information

provided to me by those Senior Partners and which | verily believe to be true.

17.  On or about the 2nd day of October, 1996, Mr. Donovan was asked by the two
Senior Partners to attend a meeting with them, at which he was told that the firm had
received an inquiry about the Letter and was asked to describe the background. Mr.
Donovan explained to the Senior Partners that he was a parent member of Frankland
and said that he was unable to confirm that a proper conflict search had preceded the

issuance of the Letter. The Senior Partners told Mr. Donovan that neither of them had



[

| e o |

| vy | e e v

e SR s BN eitbinis BN vmvuts S = Sov )

o

received the conflict enquiry and that they would have responded adversely had they’

done so, as would several other partners. Mr. Donovan understood immediately the

problem that the firm had of conflict with the Ministry of Education & Training and %ﬁ

acknowledged that there was formal conflict. He was very concemed in the meeting

that he had seriously failed to observe proper procedures and the whole tone of the

meeting was one of apology and confession of shortcoming by him. He did not take a

combative or adversarial or debating stance with the Senior Partners and was purely )

apologetic and contrite.

18. The statements made by the Senior Partners to Mr. Donovan at the meeting

proceeded strictly and solely on the basis of the conflict issue, as a result of which Mr.

Donovan further acknowledged to them that lacking the authority of the firm to accept

the retainer, the use of its letterhead for the Letter was inappropriate and that he would

immediately withdraw the letter, which he did by letter to Mr. Steve Lowden dated

October 4, 1996, Exhibit “E” to Mr. Donovan'’s Affidavit. That letter was written by Mr.

Donovan on his own, although a draft was shown to the Senior Partners for their 7

approval. Contrary to the allegations made in paragraph 7 and 9 of Mr. Donovan's Q-

R

affidavit, he was not in any sense “instructed” by or “acting on the instructions of” the

Senior Partners in writing that letter. On the contrary,

\
1.
Mr. Donovan, realizing his )

errors, volunteered to write that letter and to confirm that the Letter and his acting in the

matter were unauthorized. He further stated to the Senior Partners that in any event, it

would not be a problem for him to do so because the group which he represented was

no longer intending to proceed with the threatened action.

Swom before me at the City of Toront

Mlt—

|

in the Mupficipality of Metropolitan Torgntq )
)

this 31s )
)

of December, 1996

A CommikSioner; J—-.l
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WRITER'S DIRECT LINE: (416) 869-5452
OUR FILE NO:

VIA DELIVERY AND FAX

September 26, 1996

Mr. Steve Lowden COP Y

Chair

Sub-Panel on Education Finance —
Ministry of Education & Training This Is Em!bn.......ﬂ....mfemd to in the
Mowat Block

24th Floor

900 Bay Street

Toronto, ON M7A 1L2

Dear Mr. Lowden:

Re: Sub-panel on Education Finance

We have been consulted by the Parent/Staff Association of Frankland Community
School (the “PSA") in respect of the appointment and activities of your sub-panel on
education finance. Our client, the PSA, has repeatedly attempted to obtain pertinent
information from your sub-panel which ought reasonably to be accessible to such a
concerned organization under the circumstances. Indeed, the terms of reference of
your sub-panel have been requested, which request has been refused.

Accordingly, we have advised our client that the activities and deliberations of your
sub-panel are subject to judicial challenge on the basis of basic administrative law
principles of administrative reasonableness and procedural fairness.

We understand that your sub-panel proposes to report its findings and condusions
on or about October 5, 1996, and that such report will have an impact upon the
interests of many parties, including our client. Consequently, unless your sub-panel
becomes immediately more forthcoming, we shall be seeking instructions to
commence immediate judicial proceedings to restrain further activity and
deliberation by your sub-panel by way of injunction, and certiorari to quash the sub-
panel's constitution, with prohibition in aid to preclude the delivery of your report
by the proposed October 5, 1996 deadline.

Without purporting to be exhaustive, our client's legitimate concerns include the
following:

AN A o T CasskLs PutLiof DOLGLAs NORIECA A
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As indicated above, the terms of reference for your sub-panel have been
requested, and this request has been refused. In contrast, we have most
recently been provided (as of September 25, 1996) with a set of draft terms of
reference. Are we to understand that the sub-panel on education finance has
been proceeding with its investigations and deliberations to date in the
absence of final terms of reference? If so, the sub-panel's activities have
clearly been carried on without proper authority.

In this connection, we require immediate answers to the following questions:

(a) Do final terms of reference for the sub-panel on education finance
exist?

() If such terms of reference do exist, when were they adopted?

(c)  If such terms of reference do exist, kindly produce a copy of same
immediately. '

By letter dated September 20, 1996, Ms. Colleen D. Morris on behalf of the
PSA, requested that you notify the PSA as to the dates on which the sub-panel
will be receiving deputations. Ms. Morris has received no reply. Please
indicate at once when you will be receiving oral deputations from parties
whose interests will obviously be affected by any recommendations which
your sub-panel may make, including our client.

We are distressed to have been informed that the activities of the sub-panel
have been conducted under what can only be described as an aura of secrecy.
Our understanding is that information in respect of the location of the sub-
panel's proceedings has been denied when requested, even when such
requests have been for the purpose of delivering relevant materials to the
sub-panel. Such a practice is clearly unacceptable, and gives rise to an
inference of bad faith.

The legal authority for the appointment of the sub-panel (if any) appears to
have been kept mysterious. In this connection, we require immediate
answers to the following questions:

(a) How were the members of the sub-panel appointed?

)  Are the sub-panel members paid for their work, and, if so, on what
basis?

(c)  What was the selection process utilized to ensure a fair representation
of interested parties in the course of the selection of the sub-panel;
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(d) From what pool were the members of the sub-panel selected, and was
the process of selection made public?

(e) By means of what legal instrument (if any) were the members of the
sub-panel appointed?

5. The composition of the sub-panel on education finance is seriously defective,
in that it fails to represent parties whose interests will clearly be affected by
any report or recommendations made by the sub-panel. Most blatantly, the
Metropolitan Toronto School Board is not represented. Equally, the Ontario
Secondary School Teachers Federation is unrepresented. We are advised that

 knowledgeable members of these and other educational organizations are
willing and prepared to serve on the sub-panel. None of them have been
selected. Why not?

Under the circumstances, we have advised our client that any report or
recommendations made by your sub-panel as presently constituted will be
fundamentally defective, in that it is not clear that the sub-panel was ever properly
constituted, and legitimate apprehensions of bias, and procedural and
administrative unfairness, arise. I now write, further to Ms. Morris' letter of
September 20, 1996 to request that your sub-panel immediately cease its activities
and deliberations, pending resolution of the very serious concerns outlined above. 1
trust we shall receive your early and co-operative response, and that it will not be
necessary to obtain the assistance of the courts to restrain the sub-panel's current
activities in order to ensure a fair and equitable result.

Please govern yourself accordingly.

Yours very truly,
CASSELS BROCK & BLACKWEL

NERS N

Per: ]. Brian Donovan

JBD/tz
cc Ms. Gisele Lalonde
Ms. Enid Slack
Mr. James Downey
Ms. Linda Rydholm
Mr. John Snobelen (Delivered)
Ms. Gay Young
Ms. Colleen Morris
Ms. Maria Bahadur
Ms. Jane Archibald
Mr. Chris Malkiewich (fax: 751-7079) OF/039/w
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M., O'Brien, P., Olinde, C., Oliveira, J., Papiz, B., Patterson, L., Pearsell, L, P

Date sent: 27/9/96 9:56 AM

BcC:
priofity: Normal

[razs MESSAGE IS BEING SENT TO SECRETARIES ONLY - PLEASE PASS ON TO ALL LAWYERS

1 have been asked to act for the Frankland Public School Parents/Staff Association to seek
an immediate interim injunction and other ancillary prerogative relief against the Ontario
| suppanel on Education Finance. ,

please advise Brian Donovan if there is a conflict.
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IN THE MATTER OF a Request for an
Investigation made to the Office of the Integrity
Commissioner in respect of certain conduct of
the Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing
and a Member of his Political Staff

AFFIDAVIT OF HUGH DONALD GUTHRIE

|, HUGH DONALD GUTHRIE, of the City of Toronto, in the Municipality of
Metropolitan Toronto, MAKE OATH AND SAY AS FOLLOWS:

1. | am a barrister and solicitor duly qualified to practice law in the Province of
Ontario and was called to the Bar of Ontario in 1954. From the time of my call to the
Bar until the present, | have practiced law with the firm of Cassels Brock & Blackwell
(the “firm”) and its predecessor firms. | am the immediate past Chairman of the firm,
and for some years have been and now am the Chairman of its Ethics and

Professional Standards Committee.

2. | have read the Affidavit of Brian Donovan sworn the 9th day of December, 1996
and the exhibits thereto annexed, and | make this Affidavit in response thereto, in order
to provide relevant facts not included in Mr. Donovan’s Affidavit and to correct a

number of serious inaccuracies therein.

3: On Friday, the 27th day of September, 1996 | received a telephone call from
John Matheson, Executive Assistant to the Hon. Al Leach, Minister of Municipal Affairs
and Housing in the Government of Ontario, referred to in paragraph 10 of Mr.

Donovan’s Affidavit.

4. Mr. Matheson asked me at the outset of our telephone conversation if there was
a Brian Donovan currently associated with the firm as a practicing lawyer. | told him

that | could not immediately recall the name or say for sure whether Mr. Donovan
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practiced with us. The firm comprises some 130 lawyers and | must admit that | am not
confident that | know at all times the names of all who have recently been employed by
the firm. | told Mr. Matheson that | would have to confirm Mr. Donovan’s status and

asked him why he was inquiring.

5. Mr. Matheson then asked me if | was aware of a letter addressed to a Mr. Steve
Lowden dated September 26, 1996 (the “Letter”), written on the stationery of the firm
and apparently signed on its behalf by J. Brian Donovan, a copy of which Mr.
Matheson had received on the moming of the day of his call to me, 27th September. I
“told him that | was not aware of such a letter and as a result of inquiries which | made
subsequently, it appeared that until my conversation with Mr. Matheson, no partner in

the firm was aware of the existence of the Letter.

6. The Letter in question is referred to in paragraphs 4 and 5 of Mr. Donovan’s
said Affidavit and for greater certainty, a copy thereof is hereto annexed and marked

as Exhibit “A” to this Affidavit.

7. At no time during the said telephone conversation or at any other time did Mr.
Matheson suggest to me that the firm should withdraw or consider withdrawing the
Letter or that it should instruct Mr. Donovan to do so or that it should cease to act for,
the Parent/Staff Association of Frankland Community School (“Frankland”), nor did Mr.
Matheson interfere or attempt to interfere with any solicitor-client relationship between
the firm and Frankland, nor suggest or lead me to think that his call to me was made for
any political or ulterior motive or purpose. | understood Mr. Matheson's inquiry to be
solely directed to ascertaining whether the Letter represented the outcome of a serious
retainer and was authorized by the firm or whether it may have been written more from
Mr. Donovan’s private and personal standpoint. | told Mr. Matheson that | would look

into the matter, as it concerned me to learn from him on the telephone that the Letter



-8

_threatened “the assistance of the courts to restrain the sub-panel's current activities”
before October 5, 1996 unless the sub-panel should “immediately cease its activities

and deliberations ...".

8. | have ascertained that Mr. Donovan became an associate lawyer in the firm on
November 1, 1995. As such he would or should have been aware of the policies,
procedures and practices of the firm as to the acceptance of retainers from prospective
clients and the opening of files for new client matters. Except as otherwise expressly
indicated in this Affidavit, | use the term “retainer’” herein to mean an authority and
instruction to a lawyer from a client or prospective client to act on his, her or its behalf
in advising on or conducting a matter of a legal nature. The policies and procedures of
the firm require a three-step process in the acceptance of a retainer from a prospective
new client where the matter involves a possible controversy with or action against
another party. Firstly, the lawyer concerned must conduct a search for possible
conflicts of interest by circulating or causing to be circulated an inquiry by written
memorandum or electronic mail message to all other lawyers in the firm and to the
central records department of the firm, to inquire whether the proposed retainer could
result in a possible conflict of interest with an existing client of the firm. The
procedures further require that an adequate time for response be given, so that the
many lawyers who must read the inquiry will have sufficient time to reply, given their
other commitments and absences from the office. If after the appropriate lapse of time,
there is no adverse response to the conflict inquiry, a partner may accept a retainer
from the prospective client, preferably in writing if the matter is of a serious or difficult
nature but on occasion, where appropriate, the retainer may be oral at the outset. In
the case of an associate, the procedures apply in the same manner but the associate
will normally seek the approval or guidance of his supervising partner before

accepting an important retainer. Thirdly, the lawyer then opens a file for the matter,
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which involves instructions to the central records department to enter the name of the
new client in the firm records, to assign a client number, to prepare a file cover and to

assign a matter number to the particular file, as a sub-set of the client number.

9. Having consulted the records of the firm produced to me by the firm’s Chief
Administrative Officer, | can positively state, with reference to compliance with these
policies and procedures, as follows. Firstly, with regard to a conflict search, Mr.
Donovan evidently intended to cause to be circulated to secretaries within the firm the
electronic message, a transcribed copy of which is annexed hereto and marked as
Exhibit “B” to this Affidavit. It is to be noted that the intended opposite party in a
proposed action “to seek an immediate interim injunction and other ancillary
prerogative relief’ was stated to be “the Ontario Subpanel on Education Finance”. The
Letter, Exhibit “A” hereto, identifies that sub-panel as addressed at and apparently
associated or connected with the Ministry of Education & Training of Ontario, and the
practice of the firm would call for a listing, in the conflict inquiry, of parent, superior,
associated, related and subsidiary bodies of the opposite party, so that responding

lawyers could be made fully aware of the ramifications of the proposed retainer.

10. It is further to be noted that the conflict inauirv was issued on “27/9/96" at “9:56
a.m.” (i.e. on the day following the date of the Letter). Neither | nor the “Senior
Partners” of the firm referred to in paragraph 7 of Mr. Donovan’s affidavit, nor many of
the lawyers in the firm of whom | have made inquiries ever saw the conflict message.
There is no record of the inquiry having been sent to the central records department of
the firm. The firm was acting at the time and has for many years acted for several
Ministries of the Government of Ontario, including the Ministry of Education & Training,
and had the conflict inquiry been in proper form and issued in time for appropriate
response in advance of the issuance of the Letter, | have no doubt that | and several

partners in the firm would have responded adversely to the acceptance of the
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proposed retainer, or would at least have initiated inquiries, because the firm had
clearly, at the time, a true ethical conflict as well as a business conflict in acting
contrary to the interests of the Ministry of Education & Training or any panel or sub-

panel associated with that Ministry.

11.  Secondly, there is no record to be found in the file data or docket entries of Mr.
Donovan for the whole of the relevant period of any written retainer from Frankland,
although there are docket entries on September 25 and 26 which indicate extensive
discussions with one C. Morris concerning “potential injunction application” and “draft
letter to S. Lowden”. Presumably the C. Morris was the author of the letter, Exhibit “B”
to Mr. Donovan’s Affidavit. There is a further docket entry on September 26 of
“meeting at Frankland Public School to discuss possible courses of action” and a final
entry on September 30: “telephone call with C. Morris re possible retainer and

evening meeting” (emphasis added).

12.  In my belief and respectful submission, the statement in paragraph 8 of Mr.
Donovan’s Affidavit that he “had performed a conflict search within the firm” is
misleading, in that the search was not made in accordance with the procedures of the
firm or on a timely basis that would have allowed response before the issuance of the
Letter. Such procedures would normally require that no action akin to the Letter be

taken until October 1 at the earliest.

13.  Thirdly, the records of the firm disclose that at no time did Mr. Donovan open a
client file for the matter in question or ask that a client matter number be assigned to
Frankland, for this or any other matter. The records of the firm further show that if Mr.
Donovan “had been given a retainer in excess of $2,000.00 in respect of the matter”,
as alleged in paragraph 8 of his Affidavit, no such monetary retainer was ever received

or recorded by or made known to the firm.
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14. It is further to be noted that the docket entries referred to in paragraph 11 hereof
were entered by Mr. Donovan on an internal ledger, kept for office administration
purposes, entitled “Business Development - Donovan, J.B.” to which was assigned a
number in an internal series prefixed with the numbers “99” to indicate (as Mr.
Donovan would well know) that the activities or services reflected by the entries were

considered to be “non-billable” and not pursuant to an authorized retainer.

15.  One of the said Senior Partners was Mr. Donovan’s supervising partner. It is my
belief that Mr. Donovan would or should have known that before undertaking a matter
of the seriousness alleged in the Letter and before considering or threatening
injunction proceedings against an emanation of the Government of Ontario, he should
have discussed the matter with his supervising partner. | am informed and verily
believe that no such discussion took place and that the supervising partner was

completely unaware of the threatening Letter until informed of it by me as hereinafter

described.

16. On Monday, the 30th day of September, 1996, | consulted With the said two
Senior Partners and informed them of the substance of my telephone conversation
with Mr. Matheson on the previous Friday. The statements in the succeeding
paragraphs of this Affidavit are made upon information and belief, from information

provided to me by those Senior Partners and which | verily believe to be true.

17.  On or about the 2nd day of October, 1996, Mr. Donovan was asked by the two
Senior Partners to attend a meeting with them, at which he was told that the firm had
received an inquiry about the Letter and was asked to describe the background. Mr.
Donovan explained to the Senior Partners that he was a pafent member of Frankland
and said that he was unable to confirm that a proper conflict search had preceded the

issuance of the Letter. The Senior Partners told Mr. Donovan that neither of them had
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-received the conflict enquiry and that they would have responded adversely had they
done so, as would several other partners. Mr. Donovan understood immediately the
problem that the firm had of conflict with the Ministry of Education & Training and
acknowledged that there was formal conflict. He was very concerned in the meeting
that he had seriously failed to observe proper procedures and the whole tone of the
meeting was one of apology and confession of shortcoming by him. He did not take a
combative or adversarial or debating stance with the Senior Partners and was purely

apologetic and contrite.

18. The statements made by the Senior Partners to Mr. Donovan at the meeting
proceeded strictly and solely on the basis of the conflict issue, as a result of which Mr.
Donovan further acknowledged to them that lacking the authority of the firm to accept
the retainer, the use of its letterhead for the Letter was inappropriate and that he would
immediately withdraw the letter, which he did by letter to Mr. Steve Lowden dated
October 4, 1996, Exhibit “E” to Mr. Donovan’s Affidavit. That letter was written by Mr.
Donovan on his own, although a draft was shown to the Senior Partners for their
approval. Contrary to the allegations made in paragraph 7 and 9 of Mr. Donovan’s
affidavit, he was not in any sense “instructed” by or “acting on the instructions of” the
Senior Partners in writing that letter. On the contrary, Mr. Donovan, realizing his
errors, volunteered to write that letter and to confirm that the Letter and his acting in the
matter were unauthorized. He further stated to the Senior Partners that in any event, it
would not be a problem for him to do so because the group which he represented was

no longer intending to proceed with the threatened action.

Sworn before me at the City of Toront ) )
) ' )
in the Mupfficipality of Metropolitan Torgnt ) / A A
) w
)
)

this 31s of December, 1996

A Commissioner; elt. _‘
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QUR FILE NO:

VIA DELIVERY AND FAX

September 26, 1996

Mr. Steve Lowden COP Y

Chair

Sub-Panel on Education Finance A
Ministry of Education & Training This Is ExhibHt....... /'} ....referred to In the
Mowat Block effidasit of Hsts 1. R x4 a2.. b 147
24th Floor r

900 Bay Street

Toronto, ON M7A 1L2

Dear Mr. Lowden:

Re: Sub-panel on Education Finance

We have been consulted by the Parent/Staff Association of Frankland Community
School (the "PSA") in respect of the appointment and activities of your sub-panel on
education finance. Our client, the PSA, has repeatedly attempted to obtain pertinent
information from your sub-panel which ought reasonably to be accessible to such a
concerned organization under the circumstances. Indeed, the terms of reference of
your sub-panel have been requested, which request has been refused.

Accordingly, we have advised our client that the activities and deliberations of your
sub-panel are subject to judicial challenge on the basis of basic administrative law
principles of administrative reasonableness and procedural fairness.

We understand that your sub-panel proposes to report its findings and conclusions
on or about October 5, 1996, and that such report will have an impact upon the
interests of many parties, including our client. Consequently, unless your sub-panel
becomes immediately more forthcoming, we shall be seeking instructions to
commence immediate judicial proceedings to restrain further activity and
deliberation by your sub-panel by way of injunction, and certiorari to quash the sub-
panel's constitution, with prohibition in aid to preclude the delivery of your report
by the proposed October 5, 1996 deadline.

Without purporting to be exhaustive, our client's legitimate concerns include the
following:
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As indicated above, the terms of reference for your sub-panel have been
requested, and this request has been refused. In contrast, we have most
recently been provided (as of September 25, 1996) with a set of draft terms of
reference. Are we to understand that thHe sub-panel on education finance has
been proceeding with its investigations and deliberations to date in the
absence of final terms of reference? If so, the sub-panel's activities have
clearly been carried on without proper authority.

In this connection, we require immediate answers to the following questions:

(a) Do final terms of reference for the sub-panel on education finance
exist? '

()  If such terms of reference do exist, when were they adopted?

(c) If such terms of reference do exist, kindly produce a copy of same
immediately.

By letter dated September 20, 1996, Ms. Colleen D. Morris on behalf of the
PSA, requested that you notify the PSA as to the dates on which the sub-panel
will be receiving deputations. Ms. Morris has received no reply. Please
indicate at once when you will be receiving oral deputations from parties
whose interests will obviously be affected by any recommendations which
your sub-panel may make, including our client.

We are distressed to have been informed that the activities of the sub-panel
have been conducted under what can only be described as an aura of secrecy.
Our understanding is that information in respect of the location of the sub-
panel's proceedings has been denied when requested, even when such
requests have been for the purpose of delivering relevant materials to the
sub-panel. Such a practice is clearly unacceptable, and gives rise to an
inference of bad faith.

The legal authority for the appointment of the sub-panel (if any) appears to
have been kept mysterious. In this connection, we require immediate
answers to the following questions:

(a) How were the members of the sub-panel appointed?

(b) Are the sub-panel members paid for their work, and, if so, on what
basis?

(c) What was the selection process utilized to ensure a fair representation
of interested parties in the course of the selection of the sub-panel;
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(d)  From what pool were the members of the sub-panel selected, and was
the process of selection made public?

(e) By means of what legal instrument (if any) were the members of the
sub-panel appointed?

8 The composition of the sub-panel on education finance is seriously defective,
in that it fails to represent parties whose interests will clearly be affected by
any report or recommendations made by the sub-panel. Most blatantly, the
Metropolitan Toronto School Board is not represented. Equally, the Ontario
Secondary School Teachers Federation is unrepresented. We are advised that

_ knowledgeable members of these and other educational organizations are
willing and prepared to serve on the sub-panel. None of them have been
selected. Why not?

Under the circumstances, we have advised our client that any report or
recommendations made by your sub-panel as presently constituted will be
fundamentally defective, in that it is not clear that the sub-panel was ever properly
constituted, and legitimate apprehensions of bias, and procedural and
administrative unfairness, arise. 1 now write, further to Ms. Morris’ letter of
September 20, 1996 to request that your sub-panel immediately cease its activities
and deliberations, pending resolution of the very serious concerns outlined above. I
trust we shall receive your early and co-operative response, and that it will not be
necessary to obtain the assistance of the courts to restrain the sub-panel's current
activities in order to ensure a fair and equitable result.

Please govern yourself accordingly.

Yours very truly,
CASSELS BROCK & BLACKWEL

NERY N

Per: ]. Brian Donovan

JBD /z
cc Ms. Gisele Lalonde
Ms. Enid Slack

Mr. James Downey

Ms. Linda Rydholm

Mr. John Snobelen (Delivered)

Ms. Gay Young

Ms. Colleen Morris

Ms. Maria Bahadur

Ms. Jane Archibald

Mr. Chris Malkiewich (fax: 751-7079) OF/039/&
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Yo: Amorim, F., Aranha, S., Barbison, C, Bartel, A., Bartholomew, J., Benson, C., Best, C., Blanchi,

, CC: Neves, O., Nicov, M., O'Brien, P., Olindo, C., Oliveira, J., Papiz, B, Patterson, L., Pearsell, L., P
BCC: .

Priority: Mormal

Date sent: 27/9/96 9:56 AM

RE: CONFLICT

THIS MESSAGE IS BEING SENT TO SECRETARIES ONLY - PLEASE PASS ON TO ALL LAWYERS

I have been asked to act for the Frankland Public School Par

ents/Staff Association to seek
an immediate interim injunction and other ancillary prerogative relief against the Ontario
Subpanel on Education Finance.

Please advise Brian Donovan if there is a conflict.
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RE: CONFLICT IS

THIS MESSAGE IS BEING SENT TO SECRETARIES ONLY - PLEASE PASS ON TO ALL LAWYERS

I have been asked to act for the Frankland Public School Parents/Staff Association to seek

an immediate interim injunction and other ancillary prerogative relief against the Ontario
Subpanel on Education Finance.

Please advise Brian Donovan if there is a conflict.
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 ASSEMBLEE LEGISLATIVE DE L'ONTARIO

EXHIBIT " 10 "

5123

Hon Charles Harnick (Attorney General, minister
responsible for native affairs): I can tell the member, if
he's interested in the answer, that last week we processed
$7.1 million of cheques. We are doing that work out of
55 Yonge Street. We have closed all of the regional
offices, and four of the floors of the Downsview centre
are now complete, the work stations have been built, the
files have been brought in and the files have been
unpacked and put away. There are still —

The Speaker (Hon Chris Stockwell): Order. Supple-
mentary, member for London Centre.

Mrs Marion Boyd (London Centre): Let's just talk
about a case that we've talked about at great length in
this House, the case of my constituent Wendy Taylor.
Wendy Taylor from London, who never had any prob-
lems with the plan, has not received any payments since
you decided to centralize it. Wendy is in financial
distress — I-detailed that in this House — because of her
inability to access funds for family support, funds that
have been deducted from her ex-partner’s cheque.

On October 30, my constituency office staff were told
by the family support plan staff that Wendy Taylor's files
were in transit from the regional office and therefore they
could not access the court orders and other documents
relevant to this case, as well as many other cases. In fact,
I have a printout in my office from the family support
office stating: “We need to follow up. Need file to get
contact person.” :

I don't think it's farfetched for me, as a member of
this Legislature, to assume that the reason my constituent
is not getting the dollars she needs to feed her children is
because you have made such a mess of the family
support plan, and her file is probably in those piles of
files and is not accessible to whoever it is you have
answering the phone — :

The Speaker: Member for London Centre, come 0
order. The Attorney General. :

Hon Mr Harnick: Mr Speaker, as I've indicated, four
of the regional offices have now been completely moved
into the Downsview centre. There are still —

Ms Frances Lankin (Beaches-Woodhine): Complete-
ly moved in? Charles, look at the video. There are boxes
in the hallway. Women and children are not getting
money because you won't take action to, clean this up-

Interjection. ,

Ms Lankin; Janet, as a woman you should care about
this. As Minister of Community and Social Services, you
should be doing something to make sure that these
women and children are getting their money. I don’t need
this from you; the women and children of this province
don't need this from you.

The Speaker: Member for Beaches-Woodbine, come
to order please. Attorney General.

Hon Mr Harnick: Mr Speaker, as I've said, four of
the regional offices have now been completely moved
into the Downsview centre. There is further work to do
to complete the work to transfer the files from the other
regional offices. We have endeavoured. through the office
at 55 Yonge Street, to maintain the essential services
during this transition. We are doing that, and as I've said

earlier, we processed $7.1 million worth of cheques last
week.

Ms Shelley Martel (Sudbury East): I'd like to say t0
the Attorney General that there is no transition; there is
only chaos. The Sudbury office closed three weeks ago.
Ten boxes of unopened mail was sent somewhere into
Toronto ta be dealt with by someone at some time. At the
niﬁce today, we saw boxes and boxes of files still in the
Allied Van Lines boxes. There's nothing going on at that
office. It is complete chaos.

I want you to tell me what I should tell Linda Carter
today about her case. She’s got two children, two and a
half and four and a half years old. She regularly got
payments of $300 a month. Her last cheque was on
August 20, 1996. We confirmed with the employer that
indeed the money was remitted to the Sudbury regional
office. We tried contacting FSP on November 1; they
were going to follow up with the employer. We tried
again yesterday; they were going to follow up with the
employer. She still doesn’t have a cent..

How can you justify the crisis that is happening in the
family support plan now, due directly to your cuts in staff
and the closures of the regional offices?

Hon Mr Harnick: As I've indicated 1o this member
before, if she has a specific: problem, I am prepared to
take. that to the —— '

Interjections.

The Speaker: Attorney General?

. Hom Mr Harmick: As I have indicated to this House
before, the family support plan has been 2 major problem
in terms of the way clients —

Interjections.

The Speaker: Order. Attorney General?

Hon My Harnmick: To conciude, I hope that the
members opposite have the same passion for passing the
bill thar's now before the House so that we can correct
the problems in the family support plan once and for all.

Interjections. :

Mr Wayne Wettlaufer (Kitchener); I wish you'd shut
up so we can hear.

The Speaker: Member for Kitchener, that's unparlia-
mentary language. ] ask you to withdraw.

Mr Wettlaufer: I withdraw.
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 PARENT-SCHOOL ASSOCIATION

Mrs Lyn McLeod (Leader of the Opposition): My
question is for the Minister of Educagion and Training.
Today a group of parents from Franklin community
school delivered this letter to the Premier. Their letter
expresses their concern with an incident which they feel
constitutes a serious interference with the administration
of justice.

These parents, on behalf of their parent-school associ-
ation, had engaged a lawyer with funds which they raised
through contributions from their own pockets. They asked
the lawyer, who was anothér parent at Franklin school. to
act on their behalf in raising concerns about the subpancl
on education that was set up under the Who Does What
committee. These parents were prepared [0 challenge the
legality of the work of the subcommittee, the constitution
of the subcommittee, and in fact were prepared to seek an
injunction against the work of the subcommitiee.
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The lawyer whom they had engaged was subsequently
asked by the chairman of his law firm, a leading law firm
here in the city of Toronto, to withdraw from the case,
He was also instructed to write a letter to Steve Lowden
of the subpanel on education in which he would withdraw
the representations he had made on behalf of his clients.
This requirement that he drop the case and that he write
this letter was made because a call had come from the
Province to a senior member in the firm.

Minister, I'm sure you would agree that this does
constitute a serious violation of the rights of individuals
to express concems and to have legal representation. I
ask whether you are aware of this situation and I ask
whether your office made the call.

Hon John Snobelen (Minister of Education and
Training): I want to thank the Leader of the Opposition
for the question. However, this question deals with the
Who Does What committee and ! would defer this
question to the minister to whom that committee is
responsible,

Hon Al Leach (Minister of Municipal Affairs and
Housing): I could add some light to this question. Yes,
the Who Does What panel did receive a letter indicating
that the law firm of Cassels Brock was going to impose
an injunction on the Cronibie subpanel on education. The
application seemed so frivolous that my exegutive
assistant called Cassels Brock and said, “Are you seri-
ous?” They said: “We're not aware of this at all. We'll
get back to you.” We never heard any more about it unti]
such time as we got a letter from the lawyer in question
withdrawing the application. That's all we know.

Mrs McLeod: I must confess I am surprised we would
S0 quickly get an admission from the minister that his
office contacted the law firm. I trust he is now aware of
the results of that direct intervention in legal represen-
tation on the part of a group of citizens who wanted to
faise concerns about this government’s actions, that this
kind of direct intervention with a law firm has not only
resulted in this particular lawyer being required to drop
the case, bur that these citizens have lost their legal
representation because the lawyer was required to with-
draw . his representation on their behalf. Thesc citizens
have now been denicd both their right to raise their
concerns and their right to legal representation because of
direct intimidation from your office.

Minister, these citizens believed when they came into
this place today - and they are here — that they had
been bullied into silence by your government, They asked
in a letter to the Premier why this government believes it
is free to manipulate the law. Do You not consider this to
be a direct interference with the rights of citizens to be
heard and to have legal representation? Is this not —

The Speaker (Hon Chris Stockwell): Thank you.

Hon Mr Leach: That’s even a stetch for that party.
We made an inquiry as to whether this was a serious
allegation. The law firm said they didn't know about it.

By the way — :

Interjections.

The Speaker: Order. Order, I appreciate the fact that
thc member asked the question. I presume you'd like to
hear the answer, ‘

Hon Mr Leach: By the way, so everybody's aware,
this is the law firm of the former leader of the Liberal
Party, David Peterson. If anybody thinks we’re going to
call and try to intimidate a law firm like that, it is rather
silly. There was absolutely no attempt to intimidate any-
body. We made an inquiry whether this was serious. We
didn’t hear any more after that. What the law firm does
is their business. If they're that easily intimidated they're
not very good lawyers. '

FAMILY SUPPORT PLAN

Ms Shelley Martel (Sudbury East): I want to return
to the Attorney General with respect to the family support
plan. To date in our office we have received over 80
enquiries on cases from women and children right across
Sudbury East. We received all of our cases and we
reviewed them last week, and I can tel] you that the
overwhelming majority of those cases involved women
and children who used to receive regular support pay-
ments until you cut 290 staff and closed the regional
office.

Three weeks ago 10°'boxes of unopened mail left the

Sudbury office to be dealt with somewhere in Toronto.

No doubt, thousands of other files have also come to
Toronto and were probably among the boxes that we saw
taday on the fourth floor, totally unsecured, all over the
floor in a public area. s

I want to ask you today: What arc you going to do,
since your office is completely non-functioning at this
point {n time, to ensure that the thousands of women and
children across this province, who aren’t receiving
support because of your cuts, are going to get some
money today so they can look after and support their own
families?

Hon Charles Harnick (Attorney General, minister
responsible for native affairs): The facr that we pro-
cessed 37.1 million in cheques last week, and that we
will in all likelihood process more than that this weck
and again more than that next week, belies the fact that
the family support plan isn't working. :

We have been going through this transition. We hope
we will be through the transition very shortly. We've
hired 160 people who will be working on the front lines
to deal with client problems. We are working our way
through this transition and hope to be in a position to
deal with this in a permanent way very shortly,

Mr Bud Wildman (Algoma): Perhaps this is one of
the cases that’s lost in your files in the Allied Van Lincs
boxes in this office.

Patricia Dorn, Bruce Mines in my constituency, con-
tacted the Sudbury office, sent the forms to the Sudbury
office in May because the payee, her ex-spouse, was a
month behind. It was not processed because the Sudbury
office was gerting ready to close as per your order.

Sincc that timc Ms Dorn has had to get two jobs
because shc hasn't been receiving her payments. She’s
working at two part-time jobs. She has two children, 13
and 10, who arc supposed to be supported. She's left
messages on the answering machine. She hasn't received
any answers. She says her children would like to have
lunches when they go to school. That's what she said on
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the handling of the shutting down of these offices and the
damage that you have inflicted on women on children?
You knew in January, as your colleague acknowledged on
Thursday. What have you done about it?

Hon Charles Harnick (Attorney General, minister
responsible for native affairs): What we have done
about 1t is we have cnsured that in the first three weeks
of November, $27 million was paid out 1o 88,224 recipi-
ents. Last week $8.3 million was paid out to 27,425
recipients. This weekend, 297 MPP inquiries were dealt
with, out of which 12 required follow-up, which is being
done this moming. We also are able now to process more
than 5,000 transactions a day, up 25% in productivity
aver where we ever werc. So that's what we've donc to
date.

Mr Agostino: The response and the attitude of this
minister shows clearly the arrogance and the incompe-
tence of you as minister and of your ministry in handling
this particular transition. Minister, how can you sit there
and continue to tell us the plan is working? In my own
office we have over 80 cases that are still outstanding.
You knew in January but you deliberately allowed the
bartering and beating up of women .and children in
Ontario to continue because of your incompetence and
your failure to fix the plan.

The Speaker (Hon Chris Stockwell): Member for
Hamilton East, it’s out of order to suggest that the
minister deliberatcly allowed the battering and beating up
of innocent women. I would ask that you withdraw.

Mr Agostino: [ withdraw. Whar the minister has done
is deliberately allow women and children to suffer in this
provinee. as a resuit of the change you have made to the
plan, One quick example: I have a constituent from Thor-
old, a gentleman who called my office. He gets $200 a
month withdrawn from his bank account to go to his wife
and two children he is paying support to. Two weeks
later this $200 cheque was sent back to him to put back
in his own bank account. They're not getting the money.

Minjster, will you do the honourable thing in view of
the fact that you have known since January and resign
and allow this plan to, get fixed by another minister who
is more competent than you are? :

Hon Mr Harnick: We are taking steps now to take a
plan that didn't wotk very well, that was $1 billion in
arrears, and we're moving it into @ new plan that we hope
will provide much better coverage for people who depend
on the plan. We are now processing cheques within 24 to
36 hours. Under the old plan, where so many of these
chequcs were being done manually, this could take up to
a week. As I've indicated, we have increased by 25% the
productivity in allowing us to increase productivity to put
more cheques through the system, We're contacting 2,000
employers who have over five payors on their payroll in
order t0 make sure that they send cheques through
properly so they can be involved in electronic banking
and thus enhance the ability to speed up payments and
thus make the plan a better plan.

PARENT-SCHOOL ASSOCIATION

Ms Marilyn Churley (Riverdale): I have a question
for the Minister of Municipal Affairs. On November 7
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you were questioned in this House about a phone call
your executive assistant placed on your behalf to the fim

" Cassels Brock and Blackwell. The phone call concerned

a letter that a lawyer with the firm, Brian Donovan, had
written to the Who Does What subpanel on education
financing on behalf of a group of parents from Franklin
community school in my riding. They were concerned
that a panel which was in a position to be advocating
some drastic changes to the education system in this
province was operating in the dark in secret locations,

" with secret terms of reference and with no representation

from the education sector in Metro Toronto.
Your response to the question that day was that the
concerns of these parents “‘seemed so frivolous." Minister,

‘can you tell this House today what supreme authority
. gives you the right to deem the concerns of those parents,

concerns that might shortly be before the courts, frivol-
ous? :
Hon Al Leach (Minister of Municipal Affairs and

. Housing): I think when anybody wants to try and take

somebody to court for providing advice, it doesn't seen
very appropriate to me. I also think it's very appropriate
that when you get a letter from a law firm that’s threaten-
ing to takc legal action on a process that's under way, it's
an appropriate thing to do to call that law firm and
inquire what this is all abour. .And that's what [ said
before. We called the law firm and said, “Are you
serious?" The law firm —

Interjections.

The Speaker (Hon Chris Stockwell): Minister.

‘Hon Mr Leach: The principals of the law firm said
they didn't know anything about the matter and that's the
last we heard of it.

Ms Churley: Minister, [ can assure you this is not the
last you will have heard of it. You don't seem to under-
stand how serious this situation is. This is about citizens'
rights to due process being denied, because at the very
least an implicit threat was made on your behalf.

This is the situation: We'll never get to know whether
the' courts would have agreed with your assessment of
these concerns as being frivolous because the actions of
your staff, operating on your behalf, had the effect —
claims' Mr Donovan and he's saying this. As you know,
he no longer has a job there. He was pulled off the case
by the firm after thar phone call made on your behalf.
The Franklin group never had the chance to make their
case for an injunction because of the action of your
executive assistant acting on your behalf. It sent a chill
through the firm of Cassels Brock and Blackwell, We
don't know what was said, but it had at the very least the
appearance of a threat. Minister, what was said in that
phone call to Cassels Brock and Blackwell?

Hon Mr Leach: The lawyer in question is stll a
lawyer. I assume there was nothing to stop him from
proceeding with the action, There's nothing to stop him
now from proceeding with the action if he feels it's
appropriate,

Interjections,

The Speaker: Order.

Interfections.

The Speaker: Member for Cochrance South, Minister?

@ uu4,s 005
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Hon Mr Leach: There’s nothing to stop the individual
in question from taking action now if he chooses to.

Ms Churley: They’ve reported, Al, It's too late. The
subcommittee reported. -

Hon Mr Leach: Then you could obviously see. that
there was absolutely nothing wrong with the action.
There's no way you can take action against somebody
from providing advice. The Crombie panel doesn’t make
any decisions; it makes recommendations and provides
advice. We make the decisions,

1500

ONTARIQ FEDERA‘I’ION OF AGRICULTURE
Mr Tobj Barrett (Norfolk); I wish to queston .the

Minister of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs, Last

week, Minister Villeneuve attended the 1996 convention
of the Ontario Federation of Agriculture. I also attended,
as did other rural MPPs from both sides of the House. I
have received feedback from farmers as a result of your
presentation, Minister, to the OFA. Much of the input [
received concerned crop insurance, safety net programs
and how the ‘plans for the development of AgriCorp are
coming, to take responsibility for these kinds of pro-
grams. What feedback have you received with respect to
AgriCorp and also with respect to other deliberations at
the Ontario Federation of Agriculture? '

Hon Noble Villeneuve (Minister of Agriculture,
Food and Rural Affairs, minister responsible for
francophone affairs): I want to thank my colleague for
that question. Yes, I was very pleased to attend the
Ontario Federation of Agriculture annual meeting last
week. It was one of the most successful annual meetings
the federation has ever had, with a very large attendance.

On AgriCorp, the agricultural community is quite
prepared and' able to take into their own hands and look
after what they need. I certainly feel that's where the
responsibility lics.

I want to congratulate the OFA president, Tony Morris,
for his acclamation. I want to congratulate the new and
refurning executive who were elected last week. [ prom-
15¢, as do all of our colleagues, to work with the OFA for
the betterment and continuing to keep our food producers
on the leading edge, which is where they are. :

Mr Barrett: The minister will no doubt remember that
in the Common Sense Revolution’s rural economic
development task force we promised Ontario’s food
producers that we would work towards strengthening
Ontario’s Farm Practices Protection Act, more commonly
referred to as the right-to-farm bill, :

Interjections.

The Speaker (Hon Chris Stockwell); Would
come to order, please. Thank you. Go ahead.

Mr Barrett: A few months ago the Ontario Federaton

you

of Agriculture submitted a draft right-to-farm bill to the

minister. Could the minister tcll this House if any work
is being done to ensure that farmers have proper protec-
tion against nuisance complaints?

Hon Mr Villeneuve: Yes, the OFA did present a draft
bill and it's certainly in the direction this government
wants to go. We must provide more protection to our
farmers and our food producers. They are 2 very import-
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ant sector of our economy, Any country or any pravince
that has let its agriculture go down will stand to suffer
This government has brought in new money, $15 million
of the Grow Ontario program. We've brought in a tebate
on sales tax, $20-plus million. ,
Interjections.
Hon Mr Villeneuve: It's difficult to get the attention

of the NDP, particularly because they always have their

own agenda. [ want to remind them that they were the
government that shut down two of our five agricultural
colleges and then gave us a $50-billion debt to boot,
That’s what they did, and now they sanctimoniously Ty
to give us advice. We have to take it with a little grain of
salt.

HEALTH CARE FUNDING

Mrs Elinor Caplan (Oriole); My question is for the
Minister of Health. Last year you announced an 18% cut
in hospital budgets. You know and I know and ail
members of the House know that this has resulted in
nurse layoffs, replacement of registered nurses with less
qualified staff and difficulties in access to services.

Minister, let me tell you about Angelina Marrone,

Hon Noble Villeneuve (Minister of Agriculture,
Food and Rural Affairs, minister responsible for
francophone affairs); Put it on Hansard.

The Speaker (Hon Chris Stockwell): Minister of
Agriculture, would you come to order, please.

Interjection. -

The Speaker: And the member for Hamilton East,
come to order. £ :

Mrs Caplan: I'll tell you about Angelina Marrone.
This 69-year-old grandmother was admitted to hospital on
November 2 with chest pains. It was detcrmined almost
immediately that she required an angiogram to diagnose
the severity of her heart condition, but the doctors
encountered obstacle after obstacle. In the interim, her
condition worsened and she was transferred to an inten-
sive care unit in the same hospital on November 15.

Her family is here today in the gallery. They have just
learned that she is being transferred to a hospital where
she can get her angiogram, but they are concerned
because she has already been bumped twice. They want
to know what you say to her and to her family and
others. Is this what people can expect —

The Speaker: Member for Oriole, thank you, Minister
of Health,

Hon Jim Wilson (Minister of Health): I know the
federal government has cut health care, but we have not.
Second, there have been no cuts to the cardiac program
at all through hospital budgets; it is a fully protected
program. ‘We have increased cardiac surgeries in this
province by 19%, or almost 1,500 surgeties, and we have
the shortest waiting lists in Canada.

. This government has got rid of waste and duplication,
and soon we'll take other steps to make sure that we have
a more efficient system and that we drive dollars towards
patient care, We've done that in cardiac, and we've taken
great strides to rcduce the waiting list and increase the
capacity so we have a betrer system and people can be
looked after on a timely basis. You don't tell your
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